
City of Bethel 
         P.O. Box 1388 

    Bethel, Alaska 99559 

      Phone: 907- 543-2047 

         Fax: 907-543-3781 

Regular City Council Meeting 

Tuesday, April 24, 2018 

    6:30 P.M. 

Council Chambers; Bethel, Alaska 



Agenda posted on April 18, 2018 at City Hall, AC Co., Swanson’s, and the Post Office. 

_________________________     
Kevin Morgan, Asst. City Clerk 
(Items on the agenda noted with an asterisk (*) are considered the consent agenda. 
All Resolutions noted with an asterisk (*) will automatically be adopted on the consent agenda unless removed from the consent agenda by Council.  
Ordinances introduced with an asterisk (*) on the consent agenda will automatically be introduced and set for Public Hearing May 8, 2018. 
The Council may, after 12:00am, and only by a unanimous consent vote to Fix the Time to Which To Adjourn for the following day at 6:30 p.m. 

City Council Meeting Agenda 
Regularly Scheduled Meeting 
April 24, 2018 – 6:30 pm 
City Hall 300 State Highway, Bethel, AK 
City of Bethel Council Chambers 

Rick Robb 
Mayor 
Term Expires 2018 
rrobb@cityofbethel.net 

Fred Watson 
Vice-Mayor 
Term Expires 2018 
fwatson@cityofbethel.net 

Leif Albertson 
Council Member 
Term Expires 2019 
lalbertson@cityofbethel.net  

Mark Springer 
Council Member 
Term Expires 2018 
msprigner@cityofbethel.net  

Naim Shabani 
Council Member 
Term Expires 2019 
nshabani@cityofbethel.net 

Thor Williams 
Council Member 
Term Expires 2019 
twilliams@cityofbethel.net 

Mitchell Forbes  
Council Member  
Term Expires 2019 
mforbes@cityofbethel.net 

Pete Williams 
City Manager 
543-2047 
pwilliams@cityofbethel.net 

Lori Strickler 
City Clerk 
543-1384 
lstrickler@cityofbethel.net  

Patty Burley 
City Attorney 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

III. ROLL CALL

IV. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD – Five minutes per person

V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA AND REGULAR AGENDA

VI. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES

a) *4-10-2018 Regular Meeting Minutes 

VII. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE

VIII. SPECIAL ORDER OF BUSINESS

a) Heathfitness Monthly Report (Mayor Robb)

IX. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

a) Public Hearing of Ordinance 18-08: Amending Chapter 2.52.025 Of The Bethel
Municipal Code, Committees To Combine The Energy Committee With The Public
Works Committee And Redefining Duties Of The Newly Revised Committee (Council
Member Springer)

b) Introduction of Budget Ordinance 17-28(k): Amending the Adopted Annual FY 2018
Budget-Streets and Roads- Sewer Lagoon- Police Department- E 911 Fund (City
Manager Williams)

X. NEW BUSINESS

a) *Introduction of Ordinance 18-09: Amending 5.30.100 (F) Of The Bethel Municipal 
Code – Striking GPS Requirements for Taxicab, River Taxi, Limousine and Bus Permits 
(Public Safety and Transportation Commission) 

b) *Introduction of Budget Ordinance 17-28(l): Amending The Adopted Annual FY 2018 
Budget- Streets And Roads-Changes To Park Development Fund (City Manager 
Williams) 

c) AM 18-31: Direct Administration To Prepare And Submit A 2018 Application For
Planning Project Funding To The State Of Alaska, Village Safe Water Program, To
Request $25,000 To Update The Preliminary Engineer Report For Water Loops A, B, &
C (City Manager Williams)

d) AM 18-32: Direct Administration To Prepare And Submit A 2018 Application For
Planning Project Funding To The State Of Alaska, Village Safe Water Program, To
Request $75,000 To Pay An Engineer To Prepare A Preliminary Engineering Report To
Evaluate The Replacement Of The Sewer System In Bethel Heights (City Manager
Williams)

p.5

p.24

p.40

p.44

p.49

p.51

p.53

p.54

mailto:rrobb@cityofbethel.net
mailto:fwatson@cityofbethel.net
mailto:lalbertson@cityofbethel.net
mailto:msprigner@cityofbethel.net
mailto:nshabani@cityofbethel.net
mailto:twilliams@cityofbethel.net
mailto:mforbes@cityofbethel.net
mailto:pwilliams@cityofbethel.net
mailto:lstrickler@cityofbethel.net


Agenda posted on April 18, 2018 at City Hall, AC Co., Swanson’s, and the Post Office. 

_________________________     
Kevin Morgan, Asst. City Clerk 
(Items on the agenda noted with an asterisk (*) are considered the consent agenda. 
All Resolutions noted with an asterisk (*) will automatically be adopted on the consent agenda unless removed from the consent agenda by Council.  
Ordinances introduced with an asterisk (*) on the consent agenda will automatically be introduced and set for Public Hearing May 8, 2018. 
The Council may, after 12:00am, and only by a unanimous consent vote to Fix the Time to Which To Adjourn for the following day at 6:30 p.m. 

City Council Meeting Agenda 
Regularly Scheduled Meeting 
April 24, 2018 – 6:30 pm 
City Hall 300 State Highway, Bethel, AK 
City of Bethel Council Chambers 

e) AM 18-33: Authorize City Manager To Negotiate And Execute Level-Funded Health
Care Plan Through Premera Blue Cross/Blue Shield (City Manager Williams)

f) Review Administrative Report For The Transfer Of Bethel Spirits Inc. Liquor License
#5547 to UCI, LLC - dba as Caribou Traders Liquor, LLC.- 750 Front Street, Bethel, AK
(Mayor Robb)

g) AM 18-34: Approve the Special Budget Meeting dates for May, and June, 2018 to
begin at 6:30p and end at 9:30p. (Council Member Williams)

h) MOA With The Department Of Transportation- Maintenance Of Chief Eddie Hoffman
Highway Recycled Asphalt/ MOU Maintenance Of Gravel Portion Of Chief Eddie
Hoffman Highway And Part Of Ridgecrest (Council Member Williams)

i) Update On The Courthouse RFP And Finances Related To The Amended Lease
Agreement (Council Member Williams)

j) *IM-18-06: DCCED Requirement for Submission of Monthly Financial Report to the 
City Council and Financial Report for Eight Months Ending February 28, 2018. (City 
Manager Williams) 

k) *Personal Leave Request For The City Attorney: May 3, 4, 25 and 29. July 17 to 
August 3, 2018 (Mayor Robb) 

XI. MAYOR’S REPORT
XII. MANAGER’S REPORTS

XIII. CLERK’S REPORT

XIV. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS

XV. EXECUTIVE SESSION

a) In Accordance With AS 44.62.310(c)2: Subjects That Tend To Prejudice The
Reputation And Character Of Any Person, Provided The Person May Request A Public
Discussion - Evaluation, City Clerk (Mayor Robb)

b) In Accordance with AS 44.62.310(b), Providing Direction To The City Attorney
Regarding The Handling Of The Alcohol Beverage Control Board's Review of Pending
Liquor Licenses (Mayor Robb)

c) In Accordance With AS 44.62.310(c)1: Matters, The Immediate Knowledge Of Which
Would Clearly Have An Adverse Effect Upon The Finances Of The Public Entity-
Potential Litigation- LKSD (Mayor Robb)

XVI. ADJOURNMENT

p.55

p.59

p.75

p.76

p.87

p.104



Approval of the Meeting Minutes 



1 

City Council Meeting Minutes City of Bethel, Alaska 

April 10 2018 

Regular Meeting 
April 10, 2018 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

A Regular Meeting of the Bethel City Council was held on April 10, 2018 at 6:30 p.m., in 
the council chambers, Bethel, Alaska. 

Mayor Richard Robb called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

III. ROLL CALL

IV. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD

Eric Middlebrook –  
Thanked the hard working road crew and hauled services drivers for their hard 

work.  
Presented the Council with a letter dated 2006 to then Mayor R. Thor Williams 

that identifies the City’s sales taxation is equivalent to other communities 
property taxes.  

Mary Nanuwak –  
Stated there are a number of hazards around Bethel that need to be 

addressed. 
Explained the Alaska Commercial Co. is not an Alaskan Company and they 

should not be issued an alcohol license by the State. 

  City Council Meeting 
 City of Bethel, Alaska 

Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following members were present: 

Mayor Rick Robb Council Member Mark Springer 

Vice-Mayor Fred Watson Council Member Leif Albertson (participated telephonically) 

Council Member Mitchell Forbes  Council Member Thor Williams 

Members Absent: 

Council Member Naim Shabani 

 Also in attendance were the following: 

City Manager Pete Williams City Clerk Lori Strickler 

City Attorney Patty Burley 

5



2 

City Council Meeting Minutes City of Bethel, Alaska 

April 10 2018 

David E Trantham Jr. – 
Suggested the Mayor begin writing a report to the public on improvements. 
Identified that the City’s turnover rate is almost 50% each year, this is a 

problem. The City of Bethel has one of the best benefit packages in Bethel, 
so this statistic should be higher. Stated he likes what is going on in Human 
Resources.  

Stated an improvement in the operation of safety, thanks to the budgeting and 
hiring of the safety officer. 

Looking forward to seeing the new budget and reiterated the statements made 
by Mr. Middlebrook in the importance of having a balanced budget.  

Stacey Rearden – 
Thanked the Council and the Community Action Grant Committee for their 

grant award for the women’s self-defense class. 

V. APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AND REGULAR AGENDA 

Main Motion: Approve the Consent and Regular Agenda. 

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Forbes 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

Primary 
Amendment: Postpone the Evaluation of the City Clerk until the next meeting. 

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Forbes 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb  Watson   Albertson   Springer   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

Removal from 
Consent: Introduction of Budget Ordinance 17-28 (k) and Introduction of Ordinance 18-08. 

Moved by: Robb 

Removal from 

Consent: Resolution 18-09 and Resolution 18-10. 

Moved by: Williams 

VI. APPROVAL OF THE MEETING MINUTES

Item A –3-27-2018 Meeting Minutes 

Passed on the Consent Agenda 

VII. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

6



3 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  April 10 2018 

 
Public Safety and Transportation Commission – 
No one available to provide a report.  
 
Port Commission  - 
Meeting was not held due to lack of a quorum. 
 
Planning Commission  - 
Commission will be meeting this Thursday to discuss Kusko Liquor Store Conditional 
Use Permit extension.  
 
Parks, Recreation, Aquatic Health and Safety Center Committee - 
Considering a Kasayuli Park AM directing administration to work on the development. 
The Chavez family has provided a donation to the city for the park if the City is 
interested in moving the location. Some residents of the neighborhood are in favor 
and some are opposed.  
Request to the City Council to repurpose money from the diabetes grant for the park.  
The Committee, by a majority, supported a free City Employee entry to the Fitness 
Center.   
Thanked Louis Lemus for his presentation for Owl Park and thanked the City Manager, 
Public Works Director and the Grants Manager for their work on the park 
development. The Committee generally supported the selection of equipment 
presented by Administration.  
The Finance Director identified a new process for the drawdown of the pool fund; the 
Committee has concerns with this proposal as it has typically been done annually.  
The Committee has presented the Council with an action to rental a wood chipper for 
a month or so.  
The Committee is disappointed that the City is providing only limited support for the  
4th of July festivities. The Committee would like the Council to discuss funding a 
position to hire someone to coordinate the 4th of July festival.  
 
Finance Committee  - 
A meeting has not been held since the last City Council meeting.  
 
Energy Committee  -  
A meeting has not been held due to a lack of a quorum.  
  
Public Works Committee  - 
A meeting has not been held since the last City Council meeting due to a lack of 
membership.  
 

VIII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

7



4 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  April 10 2018 

Item A – Public Hearing Of Ordinance 16-25: Amending Bethel Municipal Code 
Chapter 13.08.300 Individual Sewer System Concerning The Inclusion Of Composting 
And Incinerating Toilets. 

Mayor Robb opened the Public Hearing. 
 

Eric Middlebrook- Supported the proposed changes.  
 

Mayor Robb closed the Public Hearing. 
 

Main Motion: Motion to Adopt was made on September 13, 2016  

Moved by: Fansler 
Seconded by: Weiss 

Action: Postponed Indefinitely  

 
Primary 

Amendment: Postpone Indefinitely.  

Moved by: Springer 
Seconded by: Albertson 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-1 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Forbes 

Opposed:  Williams   

 
Item B – AM 18-25: Directing The City Manager To Invite The Alaska Commercial 
Company To A Meeting With Administration To Discuss The Concerns Raised In 
Council’s Resolution 18-03 And Alaska Commercial Company’s Plan To Address Those 
Concerns. 

 
Main Motion: Motion to Approve AM 18-25 was made on March 27, 2018. 

Moved by: Forbes 
Seconded by: Springer 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 4-2 

In favor:  Robb   Albertson   Springer     Forbes 

Opposed:  Williams   Watson   

 

IX. NEW BUSINESS 

Item A – Introduction of Ordinance 18-08: Amending Chapter 2.52.025 Of The 
Bethel Municipal Code, Committees To Combine The Energy Committee With The 
Public Works Committee And Redefining Duties Of The Newly Revised Committee. 

Main Motion: Introduce Ordinance 18-08 

Moved by: Springer 
Seconded by: Forbes 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

8



5 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  April 10 2018 

 
 
Item B – Introduction of Budget Ordinance 17-28(k): Amending the Adopted Annual 
FY 2018 Budget-Streets and Roads- Sewer Lagoon- Police Department- E 911 Fund. 

 
Main Motion: Introduce Budget Ordinance 17-28(k). 

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Forbes 
Action: Postponed  

 
Primary 

Amendment: 
Insert $50,000 in the bottom total box for the line “net change to streets and roads 
appropriations.  

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Albertson  
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-1 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Forbes 

Opposed:  Williams   

 
Primary 

Amendment: 
In Sewer Lagoon Budget Modification B, insert “whereas Statement: This budget 
modification is necessary to cover the cost of lagoon permit fees.  

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Forbes  

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

 
Secondary 

Amendment: 

Amend to include an amendment to the primary amendment to strike 82-10100 

Central Treasury and insert 51-86-683 Minor Equipment.  

Moved by: Springer 
Seconded by: Forbes 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

 

Primary 
Amendment: 

Insert a Whereas Statement for budget modification (d) “the City did not receive 
premium notices from APEI until June 30, 2017.” 

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Forbes 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

 
Primary 

Amendment : In budget modification (e) strike “669” from the fourth account # and insert “649” 

Moved by: Springer 
Seconded by: Forbes 

9



6 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  April 10 2018 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

 

Primary 
Amendment: Strike Budget Modification (a) Gravel in the amount of $50,000.  

Moved by: Williams 

Seconded by: Watson 

Action: Postponed  

 

Primary 

Amendment: Postpone.  

Moved by: Forbes 
Seconded by: Springer 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 4-2 

In favor:  Watson   Albertson   Springer   Forbes 

Opposed:  Williams   Robb   

 

Council recessed for 10 minutes.  

 

Item C – Resolution 18-08: Adoption Of The City Of Bethel Local Hazards Mitigation 
Plan Update, August 2017. 

Passed on the consent agenda.  

 
Item D – Resolution 18-09: Support For SFY 2018 Community Revenue Sharing 
Program Funding. 

 
Main Motion: Adopt Resolution 18-09. 

Moved by: Springer 
Seconded by: Forbes 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Williams   

Opposed:  0 

 
Subsidiary Motion: Table Resolution 18-09 and 18-10 to 9 p.m. 

Moved by: Williams 
Seconded by: Springer 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

 

10



7 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  April 10 2018 

Editor’s Note: Council Member Forbes was absent when action on Item D and Item E 
resumed. 
 

Main Motion: 
Amend to strike $160,089 and FY 2016 and insert The City of Bethel is scheduled to 
receive $373,949 for FY 16 and FY 17 $247,489.  

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Albertson  

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Williams   

Opposed:  0 

 

Item E – Resolution 18-10: Support For SFY 2019 Community Revenue Sharing 
Program Funding.  

 
Main Motion: Adopt Resolution 18-10 

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Williams  

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Williams   

Opposed:  0 

 
Primary 

Amendment: 

Amend to strike $160,089 and FY 2016 and insert the City is scheduled to receive 

$373,949 for FY 16, FY 17 $247,489, and $229,695 for FY 2018. 

Moved by: Williams 
Seconded by: Springer 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Williams   

Opposed:  0 

 

Item F –  AM 18-28: Direct The City Administration To Prepare A Request For 
Proposal For The Purchase And Installation Of Playground Equipment At Owl Park For 
The Amount Of Money Provided By AVCP RHA To Restore The Park. 

 
Main Motion: Approve AM 18-28. 

Moved by: Springer 
Seconded by: Forbes 

Action: Motion does not carry by a vote of 3-3 

In favor:  Watson   Springer     Forbes 

Opposed:  Robb   Williams  Albertson   

 

Item G – AM 18-29: Direct The City Administration To Obtain A Quote For The 
Facilitation Of Renting A Large Wood Chipper To Chip The Fallen Trees In Pinky’s 
Park. 

 

11



8 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  April 10 2018 

Main Motion: Approve AM 18-29. 

Moved by: Springer 
Seconded by: Forbes 

Action: Motion does not carry by a vote of 1-5  

In favor:  Forbes 

Opposed:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Williams 

 
Council Member Forbes departed the meeting at 9:05 p.m. 
 
Council moved to two tabled items Resolution 18-09 and 18-10.  
 

Item H – AM 18-30: Authorizing Administrative Leave For The City Clerk To Attend 
The Election Policy Working Group’s May 8 And 9, 2018 Meeting. 

Passed on the Consent Agenda 
 

Item I – Capital Improvement Plan City of Bethel FY 2019 – FY 2023. 

 

Item J – Personal Leave Request For The City Clerk May 3rd and 4th. 

Passed on the Consent Agenda 
 

Item K – Amending Something Previously Adopted - Budget Ordinance 17-28 (j): 
Amending The Adopted Annual FY 2018 Budget-Change To Water And Sewer Fund- 
Moving Alcohol Tax Revenue To Community Action Grant Fund.  

 
Main Motion: Amend something previously adopted Budget Ordinance 17-28 (j)  

Moved by: Springer 
Seconded by: Williams  

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Williams   

Opposed:  0 

 
Primary 

Amendment: Amend to strike heating fuel and insert wearing apparel for line item 51-85-563. 

Moved by: Williams 
Seconded by: Springer 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Williams   

Opposed:  0 

X. MAYOR’S REPORT 
XI. MANAGER’S REPORT 
XII. CLERK’S REPORT 
XIII. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 

12



9 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  April 10 2018 

 
Mayor Richard Robb –  
Encouraged everyone to be safe.  
 
Vice-Mayor Fred Watson –  
Drove on the river to go to Napaskiak; it is getting a little difficult to drive. Use caution 
when driving on the river.  
 
Council Member Leif Albertson – 
No comment.  
 
Council Member Mark Springer –  
Thanked everyone who participated in the Alcohol Beverage Control Board Meeting 
last week. The presence of community members shows there is interest in the board 
decision.  
The City of Bethel really needs to consider ways to improve economic development 
opportunities in our community.  
 
Council Member Thor Williams–  
Regards to his family, due to the passing of Helen Sorensen. 
 

XIV. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Item A – In Accordance With AS 44.62.310(c)2: Subjects That Tend To Prejudice 
The Reputation And Character Of Any Person, Provided The Person May Request A 
Public Discussion - Evaluation, City Clerk.  
Postponed.  

 
Item B – In Accordance With AS 44.62.310(c)1: Matters, The Immediate Knowledge 
Of Which Would Clearly Have An Adverse Effect Upon The Finances Of The Public 
Entity- Union Negotiations. 
 

 

Main Motion: 

Move into Executive Session-  
Item B – In Accordance With AS 44.62.310(c)1: Matters, The Immediate Knowledge 

Of Which Would Clearly Have An Adverse Effect Upon The Finances Of The Public 

Entity- Union Negotiations. Those attending Item B were: Council, City Attorney, City 
Manager, City Clerk and HR Manager.  

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Williams  
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Williams   

Opposed:  0 

 

13



10 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  April 10 2018 

Main Motion: 

Make public a direction made to our union negotiators on February 27th related to 
the City’s Union Contract Approval. On February 27th the Bethel City Council met in 

executive session per AS 44.62.310 (b) Government Meeting, which identifies, action 
may not be taken at an executive session, except to give direction to an attorney or 

labor negotiator regarding the handling of a specific legal matter or pending labor 

negations.   

Moved by: Williams 
Seconded by: Springer 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Williams   

Opposed:  0 

 
The following is the direction made to the negotiating team in executive session:  
 
Mayor Robb reviewed the direction made to the negotiation team related to the union 
contract specifically the Performance Evaluations:  
 
Effective July 1, 2018, and continuing throughout the term of the contract, employees 
who receive a performance evaluation of “very good to excellent” will receive the 
annual merit increase of one step (2.5%).  
 

XV. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Main Motion: Adjournment. 

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Williams 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Williams   

Opposed:  0 

 
Council adjourned at 11:08 p.m. 
 
 
 

 
_________________________ 
Richard Robb, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk   

14



 

Reports of Standing Committees  
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

15



 

 

Public Safety & Transportation Commission 1 City of Bethel, Alaska 

  April 4th, 2018 

City of Bethel, Alaska  

Public Safety & Transportation Commission 
April 4th, 2018 Regular Meeting Bethel, Alaska 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

A regular meeting of the Public Safety and Transportation Commission was held on April 4th, 

2018 in the Bethel City Hall Council Chambers. 

  

This meeting was called to order at 6:38 pm. 

 

II. ROLL CALL 

 

Present:  Eileen Henrikson Chair 

   Jared Karr Vice Chair 

   Julene Webber  

   Joan Dewey 

   Monroe Tyler  

 

Absent:  Naim Shabani Council Representative 

   Mary Weiss 

   Mary Nanuwak 

 

Ex-Officio Present: Burke Waldron Chief of Police 

   William Howell Fire Chief 

   Jesslyn McGowan Recorder 

  

 

III.  PEOPLE TO BE HEARD 

No one to be heard. 

 

 

IV.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

MOVED: Karr Motion to approve the agenda. 

SECONDED: Dewey 

VOTE ON MAIN 

MOTION 

All in favor. 

 

 

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

MOVED: Dewey Motion to approve the minutes from the regular 

meeting of March 7th, 2018 SECONDED: Karr 

VOTE ON MAIN 

MOTION 

All in favor.  

16



 

 

Public Safety & Transportation Commission 2 City of Bethel, Alaska 

  April 4th, 2018 

 

VI.   UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Update on Transportation Planning 

City Manager Pete Williams absent. 

 

 

VII. NEW BUSINESS  

A. Update on Taxi Rate Increase  

Jared Karr updated the commission on what the council all approved in the ordinance and 

also what they added in the ordinance. 

 

B. Update on Phase II 911 System 

Chief Waldron gave an update on where they are at in the process of Phase II. Chief 

Howell mentioned a teleconference he will be attending with the Fire Marshall regarding 

dispatch centers.  

 

C. BMC Code 5.30.100(F) Review 
The commission reviewed the ordinance they want to send to council. They fixed what 

they want to strike out and what they want to add to 5.20.100(F) 

 

 

MOVED: Karr Motion to amend the proposed wording in ordinance 

18-XX in packet to new proposed wording. SECONDED: Dewey 

VOTE ON MAIN 

MOTION 

All in favor. 

 

 

VIII. CHIEF’s COMMENTS  

Chief Waldron – See Report in Commission Packet 

 

Fire Chief Howell – See Report in Commission Packet 

 

IX. TRANSPORTATION INSPECTOR’S REPORT 

See Report in Commission Packet 

 

X. COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVE’s COMMENTS 

Council Representative absent 

 

XI. COMMISSION MEMBER’s COMMENTS  

Eileen Henrikson- Stated she has a position open in her department at YK and if 

anyone knows someone who is looking for a job, to let them know.  

Jared Karr- Wanted to state there are two vacancies on the commission and that Mary 

Nanuwak had resigned from the commission at the City Council meeting.  

Julene Webber- Wanted to thank the Chief of Police for getting the Police 

Department up to staff and it’s nice to see how far the department has come. 

Joan Dewey- No Comment 

Monroe Tyler- No Comment 

17



 

 

Public Safety & Transportation Commission 3 City of Bethel, Alaska 

  April 4th, 2018 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 

MOVED: Karr Motion to adjourn. 

SECONDED: Webber 

VOTE ON MAIN 

MOTION 

All in favor. 

 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at 7:34 pm. 

 

 

 

APPROVED THIS _______  DAY OF_______________________, 2018.    

   

 

 

_________________________    ________________________ 

Jesslyn McGowan, Recorder     Eileen Henrikson, Chair 

18



19



20



21



22



 

Special Order of Business 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

23



YKFC Monthly Report March 2018 04/17/2018 

  
 

Page 1 of 15 

 

Schedule, Events and Programs  

 Free Women’s Self Defense Workshop, Saturday, April 28th, 3:30-7:30pm 

 Spring Classes End May 6th, registration is closed but drop in is still available for all Group Fitness Classes. 

 Mini Session of Classes will be available May 7th – May 27th, schedules and registration will be available April 30th  

 Free Women’s Self Defense Workshop, Sunday, May 13th, 10am-2pm 

 Memorial Day: 5/28/18 Facility Open 2pm-9pm 

 Free Lifeguard Training: May 29th – June 2nd, 12-6:30pm 

 Sport Club for youth ages 5-13 Starts May 29th  

 Summer 1 Classes start May 29th 

 Sundays through May 31st - Open gym basketball and Ultimate Frisbee: 

• 1-3pm Women’ Open Gym Basketball 

• 3-5pm Men’s Open Gym Basketball 

• 5:30-8pm Ultimate Frisbee 

 Smart Fit Girls Program will start during the week of June 4th, dates, times and registration information will be 

available in May. 

 Free Women’s Self Defense Workshop, Saturday, June 23rd, 3:30-7:30pm 

 July 4th Facility Open 2-9pm  

Staffing 

Operational Staff:   

 Continuing to look for a Full Time Maintenance Technician, interviews and reference checks are ongoing. 

 Currently looking for Full Time Operations Staff able work as Lifeguard, Front Desk Staff and Facility 

Attendant interchangeably. 

 We are currently looking for 1-2 Front Desk and Facility Attendants 

Programming Staff: We are looking for programming staff to fill the below roles: 

 Youth Program Staff: We are currently looking for 3-4 youth program staff to work with our Summer Sports 

Club as well as with other developing youth programs. 

 Swim Instructors 

 Masters Swim Coach: Swim coach is not required to be American Red Cross Certified, but must have 

experience with coaching competitive swimming. 

 Fitness Instructors and Certified Personal Trainers 

 Instructors for any activity, craft or music patrons might be interested in learning.  

Summer Staff: We are looking for summer staff to work with our Youth Sport Camp Program.  

 

Anyone interested in working at the YK Fitness Center can call 543-0390 or visit ykfitness.org for information. 

 

  

24



YKFC Monthly Report March 2018 04/17/2018 

  
 

Page 2 of 15 

Facility Maintenance 

 

*Note: Facility opened in November of 2014 (FY15) 

Routine Maintenance:  We continue to search for a Maintenance Technician, but all essential routine maintenance 

such as cleaning pool filters and boiler upkeep was completed.    

 

Corrective Maintenance: 

 Women’s Locker Room Suit Spinner – new motor installed.  

Maintenance needed: 

Previously reported maintenance still pending: 

 Main drain at bottom of pool – looking at replacement drain covers and processes for installation.  

 Elliptical #1 is not running smoothly and may need replacement bearings, we are looking into options for 

repair/replacement. 

 Lamps for UV system are nearing the end of their use life and will need to be replaced.  Due to the delicate and 

highly technical nature of the work it may be necessary to bring in a contractor.  We are looking at options.   

 Airlocks – we are finding that both the pool and spa regularly develop airlocks when being backwashed.  While 

the airlocks are easy to release, we are trying to determine why they are occurring to avoid them.  Update:  We 

have found an air leak in pool filter tank #2 that seems to be the cause of the air leak for the pool.  We are 

looking at best options for correcting the leak.  Update 3/18/18 we have located a broken o-ring that was the 

source of some of the air in the system, the ring has been replaced with most of the issue being solved, but we 

continue to look at the seal on pump #2 and options for replacement.  

 Overhead fans in pool area need maintenance. Working with City Facilities Department to develop a plan for safe 

access to trouble shoot the fans.  Jan 2018: City of Bethel is looking into purchasing a lift that will allow access to 

the fans as well as other maintenance areas in the pool. Update 3/18/18 a scissor lift has been identified and 

purchasing is being reviewed. 

 While moving cardio machines we found that the treadmills are wearing groves into the linoleum in some places 

and causing the linoleum to bubble in others.  Need to look into alternative flooring options for under these 

pieces.  Jan 2018: no further damage has been found, but we continue to monitor and review flooring 

replacement options.  

 Experiencing difficulties with BIAMP Interface modules for playing music in the cardio/weight room and studio.  

We are reviewing system to determine whether they can be fixed or will need to be replaced.   

25



YKFC Monthly Report March 2018 04/17/2018 

  
 

Page 3 of 15 

Revenue 

FY18 Revenue 

 
 July Membership Revenue includes payment for LKSD FY18 Contract. 

 

Revenue Comparisons FY17-FY18 

 

Revenue for December 2016 (FY17) included the Annual membership payments for the YKHC contract.  The 

FY18 contract has been renewed, partial funds were received in February and additional funds should be 

received in April.  

 

 

  

Code Facility Revenue Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Total FY18 Budgeted%attained

414 Memberships $94,430 $9,948 $17,239 $29,334 $17,032 $9,462 $8,715 $30,791 $8,664 $225,616 $372,000 60.65%

430 Pro Shop $3,283 $3,246 $3,426 $5,195 $3,231 $3,172 $2,643 $4,315 $4,537 $33,048 $39,675 83.30%

435 Concessions $4,078 $4,685 $5,635 $7,286 $5,834 $5,643 $5,367 $5,321 $6,691 $50,541 $49,200 102.73%

460 Entry Fees $6,162 $7,629 $5,955 $6,151 $14,683 $5,749 $9,736 $5,925 $8,155 $70,146 $78,480 89.38%

463 Facility Rental $661 $801 $542 $1,434 $987 $1,189 $1,258 $1,100 $834 $8,807 $12,750 69.08%

465 Program Fees $2,741 $3,046 $7,053 $5,730 $5,352 $1,469 $6,194 $2,801 $5,927 $40,313 $90,500 44.54%

Facility Revenue Total $111,356 $29,355 $39,850 $55,131 $47,120 $26,685 $33,914 $50,253 $34,808 $428,471 $642,605 66.68%

Monthly Revenue Totals July August September October November December January February March

FY17 $31,433 $26,142 $24,867 $43,503 $27,134 $57,131 $26,567 $37,829 $38,636

FY18 $111,356 $29,355 $39,850 $55,131 $47,120 $26,685 $33,914 $50,253 $34,808

Change $79,923 $3,213 $14,983 $11,628 $19,986 ($30,446) $7,346 $12,424 ($3,828)

26



YKFC Monthly Report March 2018 04/17/2018 

  
 

Page 4 of 15 

FY18 Expenses 

 
*Wages are paid every 2 weeks.  Most months include 2 pay periods, September 2017 and March 2018 include 3 pay 

periods.   

**During September the facility schedule shifted to a 7 day per week schedule adding an additional operational day 

per week of wages. 

  

Comparison of Monthly Expenses 

Primary influencer on the 

increase in expenses starting in 

September is the additional 

wages paid out to staff at the 

move to a 7 day per week 

schedule.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  

Expenses Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Total Budgeted % used

Salary Wages $10,000 $10,110 $20,989 $13,382 $11,062 $14,108 $14,108 $14,108 $21,162 $129,028 $233,050 55.36%

Hourly Wages $17,300 $18,171 $29,147 $20,984 $23,778 $23,239 $22,871 $21,890 $29,290 $206,671 $331,500 62.34%

Benefits $5,527 $5,957 $11,198 $8,187 $8,677 $9,286 $9,312 $8,975 $12,269 $79,388 $117,310 67.67%

520 Housing $3,000 $3,000 $3,090 $3,090 $3,090 $3,090 $3,090 $3,090 $3,090 $27,630 $37,080 74.51%

545 Travel/Training $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,304 $280 $1,584 $5,731 27.64%

561 Supplies $2,520 $6,925 $10,929 $4,807 $9,966 $2,458 $6,302 $5,472 $3,720 $53,100 $95,696 55.49%

580 Boiler $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $187 $0 $202 $382 $771 $5,250 14.69%

646 Contractors $11,667 $11,667 $11,667 $11,667 $11,667 $11,667 $11,667 $11,667 $11,667 $105,003 $144,200 72.82%

661 Vehicle Maintenance/Repair $0 $0 $0 $38 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $38 $750 5.06%

663 Janitorial Supplies/Services $219 $49 $134 $3,020 $574 $191 $125 $1,582 $1,949 $7,844 $20,400 38.45%

668 Software Licenses $682 $308 $423 $581 $491 $245 $371 $406 $378 $3,886 $6,869 56.57%

683 Minor Equipment $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,500 0.00%

684 Donations and Awards $90 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $90 $500 18.00%

721 Insurance $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,515 0.00%

724 Dues/Subscriptions $169 $169 $169 $169 $169 $169 $169 $169 $169 $1,524 $1,965 77.54%

727 Advertising $203 $168 $0 $0 $236 $269 $284 $0 $0 $1,161 $10,000 11.61%

733 Postage $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $500 0.00%

736 Bank Charges $627 $699 $990 $1,640 $1,038 $686 $1,020 $1,181 $1,007 $8,888 $14,060 63.21%

790 Allowance for Special Events $0 $0 $0 $294 $0 $0 $0 $0 $26 $321 $800 40.08%

799 Miscellaneous $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,058 0.00%

TOTAL $52,006 $57,223 $88,735 $67,861 $70,749 $65,596 $69,321 $70,047 $85,390 $626,926 $1,056,735 59.33%

Monthly Expenses July August September October November December January February March

FY17 $39,145 $70,114 $75,717 $58,716 $62,335 $61,668 $54,949 $72,965 $77,475

FY18 $53,231 $58,448 $89,960 $69,086 $71,974 $65,596 $70,546 $71,272 $85,390

Change $14,086 ($11,666) $14,242 $10,369 $9,638 $3,927 $15,597 ($1,694) $7,915

27



YKFC Monthly Report March 2018 04/17/2018 

  
 

Page 5 of 15 

Facility Utilization 

Facility Check-In: Facility Check-In numbers represent the total number of patrons who visited the facility and are 

based on a compilation of the number of members who checked-in, the number of daily passes sold and the number 

of participants in programs, activities, rentals and special events.  These numbers represent facility visits, not 

individuals as most individuals visit the facility multiple times over the course of the month.  

 

Facility Utilization was lower than expected during March.  We assume that the bulk of this is due to the warm 

weather making travel difficult and to the large number of individuals impacted by the flu and other illnesses. 

 

 

 

 

Area Usage: Count of the number of individuals in each area at the top and bottom of each hour.  Showing trends 

and patterns of area usage, these numbers are not an accurate reporting of the overall number of patrons using the 

facility as patrons who remain in any area for more than 30 minutes are counted more than once. The below charts 

show average number of users for each area, by day of the week, per 30 minute period and are used from 

programming and operational hours planning.    

Facility Check-In Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Total

Member Checkins 1,983 2,347 2,737 2983 2,917 2,639 3,103 2,653 2,671 24,033

Daily Admissions 1,258 1,432 1,706 1790 925 1,388 1,607 1,714 1,485 13,305

Rentals 25 62 105 50 119 215 95 120 150 941

Fitness Programming 48 68 249 220 285 152 199 210 166 1,597

Aquatics Programming 20 30 98 96 105 55 125 167 101 797

Youth Programs 14 34 41 0 0 4 10 0 21 124

Monthly Totals 3,334 3,939 4,895 5,139 4,351 4,449 5,129 4,864 4,573 40,797

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

J U L Y A U G S E P O C T N O V D E C J A N F E B M A R C H

COMPARISON OF MONTHLY CHECKIN TOTALS

FY17 FY18

Facility Check-In July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March

FY17 3,108 3,596 3,579 3,820 3,594 3,378 3,355 4,465 5,006

FY18 3,334 3,939 4,895 5,139 4,351 4,449 5,129 4,864 4,573

Difference 226 343 1,316 1,319 757 1,071 1,774 399 -433

28



YKFC Monthly Report March 2018 04/17/2018 

  
 

Page 6 of 15 

Combined Facility Totals 

 

 
  

29



YKFC Monthly Report March 2018 04/17/2018 

  
 

Page 7 of 15 

 

 
  

30



YKFC Monthly Report March 2018 04/17/2018 

  
 

Page 8 of 15 

 

 
   

31



YKFC Monthly Report March 2018 04/17/2018 

  
 

Page 9 of 15 

 

 

  

32



YKFC Monthly Report March 2018 04/17/2018 

  
 

Page 10 of 15 

 

 

  

33



YKFC Monthly Report March 2018 04/17/2018 

  
 

Page 11 of 15 

 

 

  

34



YKFC Monthly Report March 2018 04/17/2018 

  
 

Page 12 of 15 

February 2018 Monthly Facility Averages by day of the week 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Total: Mon. Tues Wed Thurs. Fridays Total: Saturdays Sundays 

5:30am 3.75 3.25 5.5 2.6 3 5:30am

6:00am 7 8.75 14 7.8 9.2 6:00am

6:30am 7.5 9.25 14.5 9.8 9.4 6:30am

7:00am 6.5 8.75 8.5 9 7.4 7:00am

7:30am 4.5 4.75 6.25 5.4 5 7:30am

8:00am 2.75 3.25 4.25 4.2 5.2 8:00am

8:30am 3.25 3.25 4.5 5.2 4.8 8:30am

9:00am 3 3.75 5.5 6.2 4 9:00am

9:30am 4.5 9 7 6 4.6 9:30am

10:00am 7.25 12.25 6.75 7.2 5.6 10:00am 6.8 3.25

10:30am 7.5 9.25 6.75 8 5 10:30am 13.4 8

11:00am 8.5 5 4.5 4.2 3.8 11:00am 12.8 11.5

11:30am 7.75 5.5 4.5 4.4 2.8 11:30am 9.4 8.5

12:00pm 9.25 2.25 2.75 2.6 2.2 12:00pm 16 8.25

12:30pm 5.75 2 4.25 3.6 7.2 12:30pm 18 9

1:00pm 3 4.75 6 2 4.4 1:00pm 17.6 13.25

1:30pm 7.75 7 7.25 5 4.6 1:30pm 16.2 17.75

2:00pm 7.5 9.25 7.5 11 5.8 2:00pm 24.8 35.75

2:30pm 9 12.75 7.25 8.6 10.8 2:30pm 30.2 29.5

3:00pm 6.5 14.5 8.75 12.6 9 3:00pm 34 30.5

3:30pm 6.75 16.75 13.5 9.2 10.4 3:30pm 33.8 31.5

4:00pm 5.5 8.5 9.25 8.2 11.2 4:00pm 32.6 28.5

4:30pm 9.5 14.25 14.25 7.6 8.6 4:30pm 30.6 27.25

5:00pm 19.5 20 16.25 13.6 8.6 5:00pm 35.2 29.25

5:30pm 23.5 18 26.25 18.4 12.8 5:30pm 30.6 23.5

6:00pm 30.5 22.5 32.5 23.4 15.8 6:00pm 25.8 24

6:30pm 30 28.75 36.5 24.8 21 6:30pm 26.2 27.25

7:00pm 24.25 30.75 39.5 25.6 30.8 7:00pm 28.4 28.25

7:30pm 26.5 36.5 33 24.2 32.2 7:30pm 26.8 15.75

8:00pm 16.75 28.25 25 15.8 20.2 8:00pm 17.8 10

8:30pm 5.75 8.5 12.75 3.4 10.8 8:30pm 3.6 3

35



YKFC Monthly Report March 2018 04/17/2018 

  
 

Page 13 of 15 

February 2018 Monthly Area Averages 

 

 

 

 

Pool Mon. Tues Wed Thurs. Fridays Pool Saturdays Sundays Spa Mon. Tues Wed Thurs. Fridays Spa Saturdays Sundays 

5:30am 0.5 0.75 0.5 1 0.4 5:30am 5:30am 0 0 0 0 0 5:30am

6:00am 2 1.75 5.25 1 1.2 6:00am 6:00am 0 1.5 0 0 0 6:00am

6:30am 1.25 2.25 7.75 1.8 1 6:30am 6:30am 0.75 0.5 1.25 0.6 0.8 6:30am

7:00am 1.75 3 4 3.4 1.8 7:00am 7:00am 0.5 0.5 0 1 0.6 7:00am

7:30am 1.25 1.25 3.75 1.8 2.4 7:30am 7:30am 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.6 7:30am

8:00am 0.75 1.5 1.5 1.2 1.6 8:00am 8:00am 0.25 0.25 0.75 1.6 0.6 8:00am

8:30am 1.5 0.5 2.25 2.2 1.8 8:30am 8:30am 0.5 1 0.75 1.2 0.6 8:30am

9:00am 1.25 0.25 3 2.8 0.8 9:00am 9:00am 0.5 0.75 0.75 0.6 0.2 9:00am

9:30am 2.5 4.25 3.75 2.8 1.6 9:30am 9:30am 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.8 0.4 9:30am

10:00am 5 1.75 4.75 1.6 1.6 10:00am 0 1.75 10:00am 0 0.25 0.75 1 2.2 10:00am 0.6 0

10:30am 5.5 1.75 6 2.2 0.8 10:30am 2 4.25 10:30am 0 0.25 0.25 0.2 1.8 10:30am 1 0.25

11:00am 5.5 1.25 4.25 2 1.6 11:00am 2.2 6 11:00am 0.25 0.75 0.25 0.2 0.2 11:00am 0.2 0.5

11:30am 4.25 0.5 2.5 2 1.4 11:30am 4 2.75 11:30am 0.25 3 1.25 0.2 0.2 11:30am 0.6 1

12:00pm 3.25 0.25 1.5 1.2 1.2 12:00pm 5.6 3.75 12:00pm 0.75 0 0.25 0 0 12:00pm 0.6 0

12:30pm 3.5 0.25 2 1.6 2 12:30pm 7.2 4 12:30pm 0.5 0 0.25 0.2 1 12:30pm 1.2 0.25

1:00pm 1.5 0.25 4.25 1.4 1.8 1:00pm 10.2 6.75 1:00pm 0.25 0 0.5 0.2 0.8 1:00pm 0.2 0.25

1:30pm 0.75 2.25 5.25 2.6 2.8 1:30pm 9.8 10.75 1:30pm 0 0 0.5 0.4 0 1:30pm 0 0.75

2:00pm 1 2 4 4.8 3 2:00pm 15.8 23.25 2:00pm 0 0.25 1.75 0.4 1 2:00pm 0.8 1.25

2:30pm 1.25 4 4.75 4 6.8 2:30pm 22.4 19.25 2:30pm 0 0 0.75 0.2 1.2 2:30pm 1.8 0.5

3:00pm 0 5.5 4.5 5 7.4 3:00pm 22.8 19.5 3:00pm 0 0.25 0.5 0.4 0 3:00pm 2.6 1.5

3:30pm 0 7 6.25 4.8 5.6 3:30pm 23.6 19.5 3:30pm 0.75 0 0 0 3.2 3:30pm 1.2 2

4:00pm 1.5 6.25 5.75 6 7.2 4:00pm 20 16.25 4:00pm 0 0 0.25 0.8 3 4:00pm 2.8 1.25

4:30pm 0.75 9 8.25 4 5.2 4:30pm 18 17 4:30pm 1.25 0.5 0.75 0.8 2.6 4:30pm 3.6 1.75

5:00pm 6 10 9 7.6 3.4 5:00pm 23 19 5:00pm 1 2 1 1 2.4 5:00pm 3 2

5:30pm 9.5 7.25 14.25 11 7 5:30pm 19 17.25 5:30pm 0.75 3 2 1 1.8 5:30pm 2.6 2.25

6:00pm 16.75 7.75 18.5 13.4 9.2 6:00pm 17.4 16.25 6:00pm 1.5 1.25 2 2.2 1 6:00pm 1.8 2.5

6:30pm 16.5 9.75 20.5 12.6 12.4 6:30pm 19.6 19.5 6:30pm 1.5 4 4.25 2.6 3.6 6:30pm 1.4 2.5

7:00pm 12.25 12.5 22 10.6 21.2 7:00pm 17.8 20.5 7:00pm 1.5 2 3 3 3.2 7:00pm 2.2 3

7:30pm 12 17 19.25 9.2 21 7:30pm 14.4 11.25 7:30pm 1.75 3 2 3.8 4.8 7:30pm 2.6 1.5

8:00pm 7.5 12.25 12.25 8.2 12 8:00pm 8.8 4.75 8:00pm 1.25 3 2.5 2 3.6 8:00pm 3.4 1.75

8:30pm 4 1.75 3.25 0 7.2 8:30pm 0 0 8:30pm 0.25 0 1 0 0.4 8:30pm 0 0

36



YKFC Monthly Report March 2018 04/17/2018 

  
 

Page 14 of 15 

  

Fitness Mon. Tues Wed Thurs. Fridays Fitness Saturdays Sundays Studio Mon. Tues Wed Thurs. Fridays Studio Saturdays Sundays Bikes Mon. Tues Wed Thurs. Fridays Bikes Saturdays Sundays 

5:30am 3.25 2.5 5 1.6 2.6 5:30am 5:30am 0 0 0 0 0 5:30am 5:30am 0 0 0 0 0 5:30am

6:00am 4.5 5 8 5.4 6.4 6:00am 6:00am 0.5 0.25 0.25 1.4 1.6 6:00am 6:00am 0 0.25 0.5 0 0 6:00am

6:30am 5.25 5.25 5 5.6 5.6 6:30am 6:30am 0.25 0.25 0 1.4 2 6:30am 6:30am 0 1 0.5 0.4 0 6:30am

7:00am 3.75 4.75 4.25 2.8 3 7:00am 7:00am 0.5 0.25 0.25 1.6 1.8 7:00am 7:00am 0 0.25 0 0.2 0.2 7:00am

7:30am 2.75 2.25 1.75 1.8 1.8 7:30am 7:30am 0 0.75 0.25 1.4 0.2 7:30am 7:30am 0 0 0 0 0 7:30am

8:00am 1.75 1.25 1.75 1.4 2.8 8:00am 8:00am 0 0.25 0 0 0 8:00am 8:00am 0 0 0.25 0 0.2 8:00am

8:30am 1.25 1.75 1.5 1.8 2 8:30am 8:30am 0 0 0 0 0 8:30am 8:30am 0 0 0 0 0.4 8:30am

9:00am 1.25 2.75 1.75 2.8 2.8 9:00am 9:00am 0 0 0 0 0 9:00am 9:00am 0 0 0 0 0.2 9:00am

9:30am 1.75 4.5 3 2.4 2.4 9:30am 9:30am 0 0 0 0 0 9:30am 9:30am 0 0 0 0 0.2 9:30am

10:00am 2.25 10.25 1.25 4.6 1.8 10:00am 3.6 1 10:00am 0 0 0 0 0 10:00am 2.2 0 10:00am 0 0 0 0 0 10:00am 0.4 0.5

10:30am 2 7.25 0.5 5.6 2.4 10:30am 7 2.25 10:30am 0 0 0 0 0 10:30am 3.2 0.25 10:30am 0 0 0 0 0 10:30am 0.2 1

11:00am 2.75 3 0 1.2 1.8 11:00am 6 2.25 11:00am 0 0 0 0.6 0.2 11:00am 3 2 11:00am 0 0 0 0.2 0 11:00am 1.4 0.75

11:30am 3.25 2 0.5 2 1.2 11:30am 3.4 3.5 11:30am 0 0 0 0 0 11:30am 1 1.25 11:30am 0 0 0.25 0.2 0 11:30am 0.4 0

12:00pm 3.25 2 0.75 0.6 1 12:00pm 4 4.25 12:00pm 2 0 0.25 0.2 0 12:00pm 5.6 0 12:00pm 0 0 0 0.6 0 12:00pm 0.2 0.25

12:30pm 1.75 1.75 2 1.4 2.2 12:30pm 4.8 4.5 12:30pm 0 0 0 0.4 1.4 12:30pm 4.6 0 12:30pm 0 0 0 0 0.6 12:30pm 0.2 0.25

1:00pm 0.25 2.75 0.25 0.2 1.6 1:00pm 4.8 6.25 1:00pm 1 1.75 1 0.2 0.2 1:00pm 2 0 1:00pm 0 0 0 0 0 1:00pm 0.4 0

1:30pm 1 1.5 0 0.2 0.8 1:30pm 3 5.25 1:30pm 6 3.25 1.5 1.8 1 1:30pm 3.2 0.5 1:30pm 0 0 0 0 0 1:30pm 0.2 0.5

2:00pm 1.5 1.25 0.5 0.4 0.8 2:00pm 5 5 2:00pm 5 5.75 1.25 5.4 1 2:00pm 3 5.25 2:00pm 0 0 0 0 0 2:00pm 0.2 1

2:30pm 1.75 1.75 0.5 1.2 1.8 2:30pm 3.8 4 2:30pm 6 6.5 1.25 3.2 1 2:30pm 2.2 5 2:30pm 0 0.5 0 0 0 2:30pm 0 0.75

3:00pm 1.75 2.25 0 2 1.6 3:00pm 3.2 4 3:00pm 4.75 6.5 3.75 5.2 0 3:00pm 5.4 4.5 3:00pm 0 0 0 0 0 3:00pm 0 1

3:30pm 1.75 4 2 0.8 1.6 3:30pm 2.8 5.5 3:30pm 4.25 5.25 5.25 3.6 0 3:30pm 6 4.5 3:30pm 0 0.5 0 0 0 3:30pm 0.2 0

4:00pm 4 2.25 1.5 1 1 4:00pm 3.8 6.25 4:00pm 0 0 1.75 0.4 0 4:00pm 6 4.75 4:00pm 0 0 0 0 0 4:00pm 0 0

4:30pm 3.75 4.25 3.5 2.8 0.8 4:30pm 3.4 5 4:30pm 3.75 0.5 1.75 0 0 4:30pm 5.6 3.5 4:30pm 0 0 0 0 0 4:30pm 0 0

5:00pm 5.5 5.75 4.5 3 2.6 5:00pm 3.6 3.75 5:00pm 6.5 2.25 1.75 2 0 5:00pm 5.6 4.25 5:00pm 0.5 0 0 0 0.2 5:00pm 0 0.25

5:30pm 6.75 5 7.75 6.2 4 5:30pm 4.6 2 5:30pm 6.25 2.75 2 0.2 0 5:30pm 4.2 2 5:30pm 0.25 0 0.25 0 0 5:30pm 0.2 0

6:00pm 6.75 8 8 6.8 4.6 6:00pm 4 2.75 6:00pm 5.5 4.25 3.5 0.8 0.6 6:00pm 2.6 2.5 6:00pm 0 1.25 0.5 0.2 0.4 6:00pm 0 0

6:30pm 8.25 9.5 7.5 8.6 3.4 6:30pm 5 3.25 6:30pm 3.5 4.5 3.5 0.8 1 6:30pm 0 2 6:30pm 0.25 1 0.75 0.2 0.6 6:30pm 0.2 0

7:00pm 8.75 10 10.75 9.4 6 7:00pm 7.2 4.25 7:00pm 1.5 5.25 2.75 2.4 0 7:00pm 0.4 0.5 7:00pm 0.25 1 1 0.2 0.4 7:00pm 0.8 0

7:30pm 10 10 8.75 9 5.2 7:30pm 8 2.5 7:30pm 2 6.25 2.75 2.2 0.8 7:30pm 1.6 0.25 7:30pm 0.75 0.25 0.25 0 0.4 7:30pm 0.2 0.25

8:00pm 7.25 9.25 7.75 3.6 4 8:00pm 4.8 3.5 8:00pm 0.75 3.25 1.5 2 0.4 8:00pm 0.8 0 8:00pm 0 0.5 1 0 0.2 8:00pm 0 0

8:30pm 1.5 4.75 6.75 3 2.8 8:30pm 3.4 2.5 8:30pm 0 1.75 1.5 0.4 0.4 8:30pm 0.2 0.25 8:30pm 0 0.25 0.25 0 0 8:30pm 0 0.25

37



YKFC Monthly Report March 2018 04/17/2018 

  
 

Page 15 of 15 

Concessions Monthly Comprisons FY17 and FY18 

 
 

 
 

Pro Shop Monthly Comprisons FY17 and FY18 

 

 

Concessions 

Sales Totals
July August September October November December January February March

FY17 $2,384.89 $3,157.11 $3,092.41 $3,769.41 $3,426.47 $3,185.55 $3,648.41 $4,247.30 $4,669.61

FY18 $3,954.28 $4,650.93 $5,633.56 $7,320.72 $5,834.03 $5,642.99 $5,366.89 $5,321.23 $6,690.87

Value Change $1,569.39 $1,493.82 $2,541.15 $3,551.31 $2,407.56 $2,457.44 $1,718.48 $1,073.93 $2,021.26

Pro Shop 

Sales Totals
July August September October November December January February March

FY17 $3,913.00 $2,850.50 $2,092.54 $3,365.62 $2,231.18 $2,490.62 $2,239.62 $2,777.95 $4,032.94

FY18 $3,289.74 $3,247.54 $3,365.77 $5,194.60 $3,231.28 $3,172.30 $2,643.08 $4,315.11 $4,537.02

Value Change -$623.26 $397.04 $1,273.23 $1,828.98 $1,000.10 $681.68 $403.46 $1,537.16 $504.08

38



 

Unfinished Business  
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

39



Introduced by: Council Member Springer 
 Introduction Date April 10, 2018 

Public Hearing:  
Action:   

Vote:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-08 

  Page 1 of 4 

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA 
 

Ordinance #18-08 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 2.52.025 OF THE BETHEL MUNICIPAL 
CODE, COMMITTEES TO COMBINE THE ENERGY COMMITTEE WITH THE 
PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE AND REDEFINING DUTIES OF THE NEWLY 

REVISED COMMITTEE 
 
WHEREAS, the Public Works Committee and the Energy Committee (created under 
Ordinance 10-12) have both had a difficult time holding a meeting because of a 
continued lack of a quorum or their membership levels have been too low to establish a 
quorum; 
 
WHEREAS, integrating the members and the duties into the Public Works Committee 
would create an effective solution to the issue faced by both bodies while maintaining 
like interests amongst the group;  
 
WHEREAS, in an effort to ensure the goals of both bodies are continued and considered 
regularly, an integration of the duties and the members to form one body by eliminating 
the Energy Committee; 
 
WHEREAS, the Public Works Committee will continue as an advisory body to the Bethel 
City Council providing recommendations on the following:  

 Planning for maintenance, repairs and remodeling of all City-owned facilities to 

include streets, parks, drainage, water and sewer, boardwalks and city buildings. 

 Recommend repairs of City-owned facilities to be included in the following year’s 
budget. 

 Consult and cooperate with Port Commission, Parks, Recreation, Aquatic health and 
safety Center Committee, Planning Commission and any other overlapping City 
Committees on relevant issues. 

 Monitors activities related to the City owned landfill, hauled refuse, water and sewer 
utilities and provides recommendations to council on fee and policy changes.   

 Review matters relating to the development, use and conservation of energy and 
other energy related concerns both for the City and the community;  

 Review matters relating to environmental impact and pollution, including natural 
resources such as air, water, solid waste, including environmental impact and public 
health and safety. 

 Continue to investigate opportunities to incorporate renewable energy on municipal 
buildings and lands.  

40



Introduced by: Council Member Springer 
 Introduction Date April 10, 2018 

Public Hearing:  
Action:   

Vote:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-08 

  Page 2 of 4 

 
  
 
WHEREAS, the standing members of the Energy Committee’s term will transfer to the 
membership of the Public Works Committee however a new oath of office will be 
required;  
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor’s appointment of a council representative to the Energy 
Committee will become void.  
 
NOW, THERFOR BE IT ORDAINED, the City Council amends Bethel Municipal Code 
Sections 2.52.020.   
 
SECTION 1.  Classification.  This is a Codified Ordinance and shall become part of the 
Bethel Municipal Code.   
 
SECTION 2. Amendments. Bethel Municipal Code Section 2.52.025 amended as follows 
(old language is stricken, new language is underlined):  
 

2.52.025 Committees.  

A. There shall be a finance committee, a public works committee, a parks, recreation, 

and an aquatic health and safety center committee, and an energy committee for the 

purposes of gathering information, conducting research, advising the city council 

regarding matters within their purview, and performing any other such duties as the 

city council may refer to them from time to time. 

B. The authority of these committees shall be advisory and recommendations shall be 

made to the city council. 

C. These committees shall be subject to all provisions of 

BMC 2.52.020 through 2.52.170. 

D. These committees shall use Robert’s Rules of Order. Regular meeting of these 

committees shall be at least quarterly. Special meetings may be called at the discretion 

of the chairperson or by two (2) members of the committee. 

E. These committees shall each be composed of seven (7) members who shall be 

residents of the city; six (6) of which shall be appointed by the mayor, subject to 

41

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel02/Bethel0252.html#2.52.020
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel02/Bethel0252.html#2.52.170


Introduced by: Council Member Springer 
 Introduction Date April 10, 2018 

Public Hearing:  
Action:   

Vote:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-08 

  Page 3 of 4 

confirmation by the city council and the seventh (7th) member shall be appointed by 

the mayor from the city council as council representative. 

F. All seven (7) members of each of the committees shall be voting members. 

G. The terms of the appointments to the committees shall be for a period of three (3) 

years except for the councilmember appointment which shall be for a period of one (1) 

year. In the event of a vacancy, the mayor shall appoint a person to serve the 

remaining term and in the case of a citizen member, said appointment shall be subject 

to confirmation by the city council. 

H. If there are a total of seven (7) combined commissions and committees, one (1) of 

the members of the city council shall serve as a council representative on each of the 

commissions and committees. If there are less than seven (7) combined commissions 

and committees, the mayor shall not serve as a council representative to a commission 

or committee. 

I. Committee members can be removed from office for cause only, and removal is 

subject to an appeal by the member to the city council. 

J. A majority of each committee shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of 

business. Four (4) affirmative votes shall be necessary to carry any question. 

K. An agenda of meetings shall be prepared and published according to established 

rules of the city council. 

L. Permanent records, or minutes, shall be kept for all meetings held. All resolutions 

and minutes of each committee or a similar report shall be presented to the city council 

by a member of the council appointed to serve on the respective committee or, in their 

absence, by the city manager. The minutes shall be properly filed in the office of the 

city clerk and shall be open to inspection by the public.  

 
SECTION 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective upon passage by 
the Bethel City Council. 
 

42



Introduced by: Council Member Springer 
 Introduction Date April 10, 2018 

Public Hearing:  
Action:   

Vote:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-08 

  Page 4 of 4 

ENACTED THIS  DAY OF __ 2018, BY A VOTE OF _IN FAVOR AND_ 
OPPOSED.  
 
ATTEST:      __________________________ 
       Richard Robb, Mayor 
________________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk 

43



Introduced by:

Introduction Date:

Public Hearing:

Action:

Vote:

ORDINANCE # 17-28 (k)

An Ordinance of the Bethel City Council Amending the Adopted Annual FY 2018 Budget

Section 1.  The following sums of money may be needed or deemed necessary to provide for increased

expenses and liabilities of the City of Bethel are hereby appropriated for the corporate purposes and

objects of the City hereinafter specified for Fiscal Year 2018 (July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018).

Section 2.  The following is a summary of the changes by fund and department:

STREETS & ROADS

WHEREAS, the City of Bethel, Public Works Department, Division of Streets & Roads, applied gravel to the

streets in Bethel throughout the 2017-18 winter for maintenance and repairs;

WHEREAS, the Streets & Roads Division is facing a severe shortage of gravel at the present time;

WHEREAS, the Streets & Roads Division needs $50,000 in its FY 2018 budget in order to purchase the

approximately 833 tons of gravel it needs to make it to the next budget cycle.

WHEREAS, the Public Works Department recently discovered that it must pay the State of Alaska an annual

sewer lagoon permit fee;

WHEREAS, the annual fee paid in March 2018 was $5,220;

WHEREAS, the permit fee amount was not accounted for in the FY 2018 Budget and must be added now;

Budget modification (a)

Account # Increases Amount

10-66-771 GRAVEL 50,000

Total Increases 50,000 

Decreases

10-10100 CENTRAL TREASURY (50,000)

Total Decreases (50,000)

TOTAL Net Change to Streets & Roads Appropriations 0    $50,000

SEWER LAGOON

WHEREAS, This budget modification is nessary to cover the cost of the lagoon permit fees. 

Budget modification (b)

Account # Increases Amount

51-87-724 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 5,220 

Total Increases 5,220 

Decreases

82-10100      

51-86-683                                                    CENTRAL TREASURY MINOR EQUIPMENT 5,220

Total Decreases (5,220)
TOTAL Net Change to General Fund Appropriations 0

POLICE DEPARTMENT

City Manager Williams

April 10, 2018

April 24, 2018

Be it Enacted by the Bethel City Council that the FY2018 Annual Budget be amended as follows:

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA

                    City of Bethel
Ordinance #17-28 (k)

1 of 2
44



WHEREAS, To fund Police overtime budget.

Budget modification (c)

Account # Increases Amount

10-61-502 OVERTIME 30,000 

Total Increases 30,000 

Decreases

10-61-501 WAGES 30,000

Total Decreases (30,000)

TOTAL Net Change to General Fund Appropriations 0

POLICE DEPARTMENT

WHEREAS, The City did not receive premium notices from Alaska Public Entity Insurance until June 30, 2017.

Budget modification (d)

Account # Increases Amount

10-61-721 INSURANCE 37,000 

Total Increases 37,000 

Decreases

10-61-602 GASOLINE 20,000

10-61-623 HEATING FUEL 8,000

10-61-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT 9,000

Total Decreases (37,000)
TOTAL Net Change to General Fund Appropriations 0

E-911 FUND

WHEREAS, This will be to fund increases in wages and professional services and to budget for E-911 phone lines.

Budget modification (e)

Account # Increases Amount

41-50-501 SALARIES 3,000 

41-50-502 OVERTIME 2,000 

41-50-622 911 PHONE LINES 1,700 

41-50-669  

41-50-649

OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 500 

Total Increases 7,200 

Decreases

41-50-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS 5,000

41-50-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES 2,200

Total Decreases (7,200)
TOTAL Net Change to General Fund Appropriations 0

Section 3. Effective Date. This ordinance become effective immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS __ DAY OF ___ 2018 BY A VOTE OF __ IN FAVOR AND __ OPPOSED.

ATTEST:

_______________________ ______________________________

Lori Strickler, City Clerk Richard Robb, Mayor

City of Bethel
Ordinance #17-28 (k)

2 of 2
45



Note: These Suggested Amendments were considered by Council at the April 10th 
Meeting. Amendments which passed have been Applied to the Ordinance.

46



47



 

New Business   
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

48



Introduced by: Public Safety and 
Transportation Commission 

 Introduction Date April 24, 2018 
Public Hearing: May 8, 2018 

Action:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-09 

  Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA 
 

Ordinance # 18-09 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING 5.30.100 (F) OF THE BETHEL MUNICIPAL CODE  
 
WHEREAS, the taxicab industry provides a valuable service to the community of Bethel 24 

hours a day, seven days a week; 
 
WHEREAS, the global positioning system was never used since put in the Bethel Municipal 

code 
 
NOW, BE IT ORDAINED, the City Council amends the Bethel Municipal Code, Section 
5.30.100(F), by amending the language for requiring a global positioning system.  
 
SECTION 1.  Classification.  This is a Codified Ordinance and shall become part of the 
Bethel Municipal Code. 
 
SECTION 2.  Amendments.  Bethel Municipal Code Section 5.30.100(F) is amended as 
follows: (new language is underlined and old language is stricken): 
 

5.30.100 Taxicab, River Taxi, Limousine and Bus Permits- Required Equipment 

F. Every regulated vehicle shall be equipped at all times with a video camera 

surveillance system and have global positioning system capability. The surveillance and 

GPS systems system shall be capable of recording and storing the data of at least 

seventy-two (72) hours of in-service operations. The recorded data shall be stored on 

board the taxicab or transmitted for storage. The stored data for the immediately 

preceding seventy-two (72) hours of recording shall not be altered or manipulated by 

any person, and shall be made available for review and inspection by the transportation 

inspector for purposes of enforcement of Chapters 5.20 and 5.40 BMC and this chapter 

or by a peace officer as defined in AS 1.10.060 upon request. For good cause, the 

transportation inspector may order retention of recorded data of specific dates, trips, or 

incidents for up to two (2) years. 

1. The video camera surveillance system shall have the capability to operate 

twenty-four (24) hours a day, record video only, and be compatible with 

surveillance during both daytime and nighttime. The surveillance system shall 

49

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0520.html#5.20
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0540.html#5.40
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/statutes.asp#01.10.060


Introduced by: Public Safety and 
Transportation Commission 

 Introduction Date April 24, 2018 
Public Hearing: May 8, 2018 

Action:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-09 

  Page 2 of 2 

either have continuous operation or be activated by the opening of a door, or 

some other self-initiating device which does not require the specific decision or 

action by the chauffeur to activate the surveillance system. The system shall be 

capable of producing high-quality pictures for law enforcement use. The system 

shall have cameras facing the front and rear and positioned in a manner that 

provides views of the regulated vehicle interior that are visible to passerby and 

does not violate privacy rights. A limousine shall not have video surveillance of the 

passenger area designed and intended to provide privacy from the chauffeur and 

public view, but may have a view into that area when a privacy partition or device 

is open. 

2. The global positioning system capability of any regulated vehicle shall either 

have continuous operation or be activated by a self-initiating device which does 

not require the specific decision or action by the chauffeur to activate the global 

positioning system. The global positioning system in taxicabs must be capable of 

alerting the monitoring station of emergencies. The dispatch company or a 

company within the municipality approved by the transportation inspector will be 

the monitoring station for a taxicab’s global positioning system. [Ord. 15-21 § 2; 

Ord. 01-02 § 3.] 

 
 
SECTION 3.  Effective date.  This ordinance shall become effective ninety (90) days after 
passage by the Bethel City Council.  
 
 
ATTEST:      __________________________ 
       Richard Robb, Mayor 
 
________________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk 

50



Introduced by:

Introduction Date:

Public Hearing: May 8, 2018

Action:

Vote:

Section 1.  That the following sums of money as may be needed or deemed necessary to provide for increased

WHEREAS, On September 26, 2017 the City of Bethel passed Ordinance # 17-28 (b), approving the 

expenditure of $200,000 for a gravel purchase and that amount was recorded into account

10-14000, Gravel Inventory

WHEREAS, The purchase of gravel inventory has been used, it is to now be expensed, removing it from inventory 

and expensing it into account 10-66-771, Gravel Expense. 

ACCOUNT # Increases

10-66-771 GRAVEL EXPENSE 200,000 

Total Increases 200,000 

Decreases

10-14000 GRAVEL INVENTORY (200,000)

Total Decreases (200,000)

                                                                                                              TOTAL 0 

TOTAL CHANGE TO GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATIONS

Total Increases 0 

Total Decreases 0 

Cumulative Change to APPROPRIATIONS 0 

TOTAL CHANGE TO GENERAL FUND BALANCE

Change to General Fund Revenues 0 

Change to General Fund Appropriations 0 

Cumulative Increase/Decrease to Fund Balance 0 

Change to Revenues  Increase/(Decrease) 0

Change to Appropriations  Increase/(Decrease) 0

These changes INCREASE↑ the overall expenditures/expenses of the City by 0

Section 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance becomes effective immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS __ DAY OF DECEMBER 2017 BY A VOTE OF __ IN FAVOR AND __ OPPOSED.

ATTEST:

_____________________________

TOTAL CHANGE TO OVERALL CITY BUDGET

                                                                                          ____________________________________

                                                                       Richard Robb, Mayor

An Ordinance of the Bethel City Council Amending the Adopted Annual FY 2018 Budget

Be it Enacted by the Bethel City Council that the FY 2018 Annual Budget be amended as follows:

Section 2.  The following is a summary of the changes by fund and department:

STREETS & ROADS

CHANGE TO PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND

Peter Williams, City Manager

April 24, 2018

ORDINANCE # 17-28(l)

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA

expenses and liabilities of the City of Bethel are hereby appropriated for the corporate purposes and objects of the City hereinafter specified for 

Fiscal Year 2018, July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018.

         City of Bethel
Ordinance #17-28(l)

1 of 2

51



Lori Strickler, City Clerk

         City of Bethel
Ordinance #17-28(l)

2 of 2

52



18-31
April 24, 2018

53



18-32
April 24, 2018

54



City of Bethel Action Memorandum 

Action memorandum No. 

Date action introduced: Introduced by: I Peter Williams, City Manager 

Date action taken : Approved Denied 

Confirmed by: 

Action Title: Authorize City Manager to negotiate and execute level-funded health care plan 

through Premera Blue Cross/Blue Shield 

Attachment(s): Summary of Differences 

Department/Individual: Initials: Remarks: 

HR II 
Risk Manager 

City Attorney Pb (j t_p k o.r S~Shriuk ~.s~e,..s 
City Clerk XA Doc~ \\..\c:i C'-\::lOty ~Oc.oct_, - tJoR>\Hc 

Finance ~~~ 
City Manager ~ 0 

'-1 1 
Amount of fiscal impact: Account information: 

X No fiscal impact at this time. 

Funds in City Budget. 

Funds not in City Budget. 

Summary Statement 

Authorize the City Manager to change the current group health coverage plan for City of Bethel 

employees from a self-funded program to a level-funded program offered through Premera 

Blue Cross/Blue Shield . Projection presented by The Wilson Agency and analyzed in-depth by 

Administration anticipates savings of $250,000+ the first year and expected significant savings 
in subsequent years by converting. Basic coverage for employees would be very similar with 
lower costs for common claims and higher costs for less common claims. 

The administration has conducted due-diligence and determined moving to a level-funded plan 

offered by Premera is in the best interests of the City and its employees for the following 

reasons: 

1. Lower costs. Moving to Premera will save approximately $250,000 over projected costs 

under current plan for FY 19 
2. Set premiums per month, and significantly lower financial risk. Under the self-funded plan, 

the City bears all the risk until a claim reaches the stop-loss level of $60,000. This is 

18-33
April 24, 2018

55



especially significant because of the increase in the number of claims over $30,000: 

a. 2015-2016-2 claims between $30k and $60k and 1 claim between $60k and $120k 
b. 2016-2017- 6 claims between $30k and $60k and 1 claim between $60k and $120k 

3 claims over 120k 
c. 2017-Feb 2018-5 claims between $30k and $60k and 3 claims between $60k and 

$120k 

3. Lower total annual out-of-pocket costs for families than current plan; $9,000 (Premera) vs. 
$14,300 (current plan) 

4. Many common events enjoy better coverage under new plan including: 

a. Preventive dental coverage for adults would be covered at 100% vs 90% under 
current plan 

b. Emergency room copay would be $100 vs $150 under current plan 
c. Lower costs for newer non-generic prescriptions $30/$50 vs 20% under current 

plan; same cost for generic prescriptions with both plans 

5. If our costs are lower than our premiums and we are in a 'gain' position, the City would receive 
50% of the gains annually in a refund 

6. With the purchasing power of Premera, the City expects even lower premiums in the future 

Other things to consider: 

1. Employees would incur higher costs if they use out-of-network providers (60% vs 20% under 
current plan} Note: All providers in Bethel are in-network 

2. Terminal Liability costs for run-out of self-funder plan (est.@ $221,500} 
3. The City would not retain all savings if actual costs were lower than budget 
4. The City would need to find a third party administrator for Cobra administration (anticipated 

cost of $1,000 annually} 
5. The City would no longer receive prescription rebates (estimated to be $11,786 annually} 

2 56



Self-Funded Vs. Level Funded 
City of Bethel 

Effective Date: July 1, 2018 

TPSC/Sunlife TPSC/Sunlife 

ENROLLMENT & Rates Self-Funded Self-Funded 

Total Employees 83 $_250L$.1000 Ded $_250L$.1000 Ded 
·i····· 

EE Only 33 $2,077.67 $2,245.01 

EE +Spouse 8 $2,077.67 $2,245.01 

EE +Children 31 $2,077.67 $2,245.01 

Family 11 $2,077.67 $2,245 .01 

OST BREAKDOWN I 

Per Month 

Per Year 

%Change 

Total Costs 

$172,447 

$2,069,359 

Total Costs 

$186,336 

$2,236,030 

8.1% 

$_500 Ded 

$1,226.30 

$2,753 .14 

$2,182.29 

$3,706.25 

Total Costs 

Level funded 
Overview- Includes 

Medicai/Rx/Dental/ 
Vision 

Premera 

$_1,000 Ded 

I $1,181.27 
!-

$2,651.82 

$2,103.49 

$3,571.16 

Total Costs 

$20,962 $144,491 

$1,985,435 

-4.1% 

57



Self-Funded Vs. Level Funded 

Deductible (Individual I Family) $250/$750 $1,000/$3,000 $500/$1,000 $1,000/$2,000 

Member Coinsurance (Coins) 20% 20% 20% 20% 

Out-of-Pocket (Individual I Family) $3,000/$9,000 $5,000/$14,300 $3,500/$7,000 $4,500/$9,000 

Primary Care Office Visit 
20% 20% 20% 20% 

Capay/Coins 

' 
Emergency Room Capay/Coins $150/20% $150/20% $100/20% I $100/20% !• 

Hospital Copays/Coins 20% 20% 20% 20% 

Outpatient X-Ray & Lab Services 20% 20% 20% 20% 

Retail Prescription Copays $10/20% $10/20% $10/$30/$50 $10/$30/$50 

Out-of-Network Benefits Paid at 80% Paid at 80% Paid at 40% Paid at 40% 

Other Dental & Vision Dental & Vision Dental & Vision Dental & Vision 

58



59



60



 

 

 

 
Department of Commerce, Community, 

and Economic Development 
ALCOHOL & MARIJUANA CONTROL OFFICE 

550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1600 
Anchorage, AK 99501 

Main: 907.269.0350

March 12, 2018 
 
City of Bethel 
Attn: Lori Strickler 
VIA Email: lstrickler@cityofbethel.net  
Attn: Patty Burley, City Attorney 
VIA Email:         pburley@cityofbethel.net  
 
 
License Type: Package Store License Number: 5447 
Licensee: Caribou Traders Liquor, LLC 
Doing Business As: Caribou Traders Liquor 

  
☐ New Application ☒ Transfer of Ownership Application  
☐ Transfer of Location Application ☐ Transfer of Controlling Interest Application 
                     
We have received a completed application for the above listed license (see attached application 
documents) within your jurisdiction. This is the notice required under AS 04.11.480. 
 
A local governing body may protest the approval of an application(s) pursuant to AS 04.11.480 by 
furnishing the director and the applicant with a clear and concise written statement of reasons for the 
protest within 60 days of receipt of this notice, and by allowing the applicant a reasonable opportunity to 
defend the application before a meeting of the local governing body, as required by 3 AAC 304.145(d). If 
a protest is filed, the board will deny the application unless the board finds that the protest is arbitrary, 
capricious, and unreasonable. To protest the application referenced above, please submit your protest 
within 60 days and show proof of service upon the applicant. 
 
AS 04.11.491 – AS 04.11.509 provide that the board will deny a license application if the board finds that 
the license is prohibited under as a result of an election conducted under AS 04.11.507. 
 
AS 04.11.420 provides that the board will not issue a license when a local governing body protests an 
application on the grounds that the applicant’s proposed licensed premises are located in a place within 
the local government where a local zoning ordinance prohibits the alcohol establishment, unless the 
local government has approved a variance from the local ordinance. 
  
Sincerely, 
 

 
Jedediah Smith, Local Government Specialist  
amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov  
  

61

mailto:lstrickler@cityofbethel.net
mailto:pburley@cityofbethel.net
mailto:amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov


62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



City of Bethel Action Memorandum 

Action memorandum No.  18-34 

Date action introduced: April 24, 2018 Introduced by:   Council Member Williams 

Date action taken: 
 

          Approved                                 Denied                                           

Confirmed by:  

 

AM No. 18-34  

Approve the Special Budget Meeting dates for May, and June, 2018 to begin at 6:30p 
and end at 9:30p.  

Route to:  Department/Individual: Initials: Remarks: 
 
 

City Manager    

 

Amount of fiscal impact: None 

 

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday 

MAY 

7 SPECIAL  8 REGULAR  9 SPECIAL 10 SPECIAL 11 

14 SPECIAL 15 SPECIAL 16 SPECIAL 17 SPECIAL 18 

21 SPECIAL 22 REGULAR 23 SPECIAL 24 SPECIAL 25 

28 SPECIAL 29 SPECIAL 31 SPECIAL   

JUNE 

   1 SPECIAL 2 

4 SPECIAL 5 SPECIAL 6 SPECIAL 7 SPECIAL 8 

11 SPECIAL 12 REGULAR 13 14 15 DEADLINE 

 

May 

7Th  Overview, Revenue, Administration, Clerk, Legal 

9Th  Unfinished, Finance, Planning, Public Works General Fund 

10th  Unfinished, Public Works Administration, Streets and Roads, Property 

Maintenance 

14th  Unfinished, Police, Fire, IT 

15th  Unfinished, Solid Waste  

16th  Unfinished, Water and Sewer Utilities: Hauled water/sewer, Piped water/sewer, 

Water Treatment, Sewer Lagoon, Utility Billing  

17th  Unfinished, Port 

21st   Unfinished, Leased Properties, Employee Group Health Benefits    

23rd Unfinished, Community Services, In Kind & Transfers 

24th Unfinished, Endowment, V&E, Fleet Replacement Fund 

28th  Unfinished, BATHC, E911, Transit 

29th  Unfinished  

31st  Unfinished 

75



76



77



1 | P a g e  
 

WINTER ROAD MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

THE STATE OF ALASKA, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND 

PUBLIC FACILITIES 

AND 

THE CITY OF BETHEL  

 

This ROAD MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into 

between the State of Alaska, Department of Transportation and Public Facilities 

(“State”), and the City of Bethel (“Bethel”), a municipality organized and existing under 

the laws of the State of Alaska. 

 

WHEREAS, The State has management and maintenance responsibility for Chief 

Eddie Hoffman Highway and Ridgecrest in Bethel (hereinafter referred to as (the    

“Roads”) ;  

 

WHEREAS, Bethel is a municipal entity with jurisdiction in Bethel, Alaska; 

 

WHEREAS, Bethel has requested permission from the State to assume 

maintenance responsibilities for the Roads; and 

 

WHEREAS, in exchange for Bethel assuming maintenance responsibilities for the 

Roads the State has agreed to provide Bethel with one thousand  (1,000 cy) cubic yards 

of rotomilled asphalt material (the “Material”) to be stockpiled at the Bethel Airport.  

 

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 

sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the State and Bethel agree as follows; 

 

1) Authority for this Agreement.  The authority for the agreement is under Title 23 

of the United States Code, 49 C.F.R., Part 18, AS 36.30.015 (a) or (b), AS 

44.17.030 and State of Alaska, Department of Transportation & Public Facilities 

Policy and Procedure Number 05.01.060. 

 

 

2) Purpose, Term, Effective Date and Termination.   

 

a.) Purpose.  The purpose of this Agreement is to transfer maintenance 

responsibilities for the non-paved sections of Chief Eddie Hoffman 

Highway and Ridgecrest Drive from the State to Bethel in exchange for the 

State to provide Bethel with the Material. 

 

 

b.) Term. The term of this Agreement shall be until the Roads are repaved 

under a federal project unless sooner terminated by DOT&PF or Bethel. 

78



2 | P a g e  
 

 

c.) Effective Date.  The effective date of this Agreement is the date on which 

the last party signs this agreement.   

 

d.)   Termination.  Either party may terminate this Agreement without cause 

upon thirty (30) days advance written notice to the other party 

 

3) Bethel Road Maintenance Responsibilities. Bethel agrees to perform, at its 

sole cost and expense, the following road maintenance for the Roads: 

 

 

a.) It will comply with the State DOT&PF Right-of-Way manual and all 

applicable state, federal and local laws, rules and regulations in carrying out 

its duties hereunder; 

 

b.) It will perform all operation and maintenance activities required by this 

Agreement at its own expense and without reimbursement from DOT&PF. 

Maintenance activities include but are not limited to the following: 

 

1. Planning, scheduling, administration, and logistics maintenance 

activities; 

 

2. Provide equipment, materials and operators for re-grading the Roads 

and associated tasks as may be required for the safe and timely 

passage of the public; 

 

c.) Ensure the Road continues to be operated as a public facility. 

 

 

4)  Bethel’s Responsibilities for the Materials. 

 

 a.)  Location.  The State will stockpile the Material at the Bethel Airport.  Bethel 

shall access and remove after coordinating with the Bethel Airport Manager.   

 

 b.)  Acceptance of Material.  Bethel shall accept the Material in their “as is“ 

condition. 

 

 c.)  Bethel shall abide by the Salvage provisions of 23 U.S.C. and it shall use the 

Materials solely on public roads.  Bethel covenants and warrants it will not use the 

Material on parks, parking lots, landfills, building sites or any other non-approved area.    

 

 d.)  Bethel shall provide quarterly reports to the State identifying the amount of 

Material used during the quarter, the identity of the project the material was used in and 

79



3 | P a g e  
 

the amount of Material remaining at the Material Site.  Bethel shall supply these quarterly 

reports pursuant to the notice provisions hereof until all Material has been utilized and 

accounted for.  

 

 

5) State’s Responsibilities: 

 

 a.)  The State will deliver the Material to the Material Site at no cost to Bethel and 

it will provide Bethel with at least 24 hour advance oral or written notice of all Material 

deliveries. 

 

 b.)  The State will use its best efforts to keep the Material as clean as possible and 

free from foreign objects. 

 

 c.)  The State shall provide Bethel with a copy of the trucking log for each truck 

delivering Material to the Material Site.  The logs shall provide the date and time of each 

Material delivery and the quantity delivered.  The Material shall be quantified on the 

basis of 18 cubic yards per side/belly dump or 10 cubic yards per end dump load.  The 

State’s responsibility to deliver the Material shall cease upon its delivery to the Material 

Site of a total of 1,000 cubic yards of Material.  

 

 

 

 

6) Indemnification: 

 

 Bethel shall hold the State, its officers, employees, agents and contractors 

(collectively, “the State”) harmless from and defend and indemnify the State for liability, 

claims, or causes of action arising out of this Agreement or relating to the road 

maintenance and the Material Site and all other obligations herein. 

 

a.) Notwithstanding the foregoing, Bethel shall have no obligation to hold 

harmless and indemnify the State to the extent the State is determined to be 

liable for its own acts or omissions, except that: 

 

b.) Bethel’s duty to defend shall apply regardless of whether it is also alleged 

that the State’s acts or omissions contributed to the injury (including injury 

to personal property, real property or persons, including fatal injury). 

 

c.) Neither liability, claims, nor causes of action arising from injuries which 

occurred prior to the Effective Date. 

 

7) Each Party is an Independent Contractor: 

80



4 | P a g e  
 

 

For the purposes of this Agreement and all services to be provided hereunder, each 

party shall be, and shall be deemed to be, an independent contractor and not a partner, 

agent, or employee of the other party. Neither party shall have authority to make any 

statements, representations, nor commitments of any kind, nor to take any action, which 

shall be binding on the other party, except as may be explicitly provided for herein or 

authorized by the other party in writing. 

 

8) Authorized Representatives: 
 

a.) Each authorized representative below will have the responsibility to 

administer and, unless otherwise noted, serve as the main point of contact. 

 

b.) If and when there is a change in the main point of contact an amendment 

can be requested by either party. 

 

For Bethel:  For the State: 

Peter Williams  Bob Anderson 

Bethel City Manager  Chief, Central Region 

Maintenance & Operations 

PO Box 1399  P.O. Box 196900 

Bethel, AK  99559  Anchorage, AK 99519-6900  

907-543-2047  907-269-0756 

pwilliams@cityofbethel.net  bob.anderson@alaska.gov  

 

c.) Notice. Any request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent or 

waiver provided or permitted to be made upon, given by, or furnished to the 

State or Bethel shall be sufficient for every purpose hereunder if in writing 

and delivered by hand or by e-mail and shall be deemed delivered at the 

time of e-mail to the persons at their e-mail addresses noted above or 

mailed by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage 

prepaid and addressed as noted above.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 

notice of a delivery of Material to the Material Site can be made either in 

conformity with the above procedure or by telephone communication. 

 

The foregoing addresses may be changed by either party by giving to the 

other party the same type of notice described above providing a substitute 

address. Any such notice or other document shall be deemed to be received 

as of five days after the date deposited in the mail, if mailed by certified or 

registered mail. 

 

9) Miscellaneous Provisions: 

 

81

mailto:bob.anderson@alaska.gov


5 | P a g e  
 

a.) Amendment or modification of Agreement. This Agreement may only be 

modified or amended by written agreement signed by authorized 

representatives for both Parties. 

 

b.) The whole agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement 

between the Parties. There are no other understandings or agreements 

between the Parties, either oral or memorialized in writing regarding the 

matters addressed in this Agreement. This Agreement may not be amended 

by the Parties unless an amendment is agreed to in writing, with the both 

Parties signing through their authorized representatives. 

 

c.) Assignment. This Agreement is not assignable by Bethel, either in whole or 

in part, without the prior written consent of the State.  The State may grant 

or withhold consent in its sole and absolute discretion. 

 

d.) Duty of Cooperation.  Bethel agrees to cooperate in good faith with 

inquiries and requests for information relating to the Road or its obligations 

under this Agreement. 

 

e.) Necessary approvals. In the event that any election, referendum, ordinance, 

approval, permit, notice, or other proceeding or authorization is requisite 

under applicable law to enable Bethel to enter into this Agreement or to 

undertake its duties and obligations, or to observe, assume or carry out any 

of the provisions of the Agreement, Bethel will initiate and consummate, as 

provided by law, all actions necessary with respect to any such matters so 

requisite. 

 

f.) Joint drafting. This Agreement has been jointly drafted by the Parties, and 

each party has had the ability and opportunity to consult with its legal 

counsel prior to signature. The Agreement shall not be construed for or 

against either party. 

 

g.) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of 

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original. The counterparts 

shall together constitute but one agreement. Any signature on a copy of this 

Agreement or any document necessary or convenient thereto sent 

electronically or by facsimile shall be binding upon transmission and the 

electronic or facsimile copy may be utilized for the purposes of this 

Agreement. 

 

h.) Amendment. No modification, waiver, amendment, discharge or change of 

this Agreement shall be valid unless it is in writing and signed by both 

Parties. Failure to insist upon strict compliance with any term, condition, 

82



6 | P a g e  
 

covenant, promise, or provision contained herein shall not be deemed a 

waiver of those or any other terms, conditions, covenants, promises, or 

provisions of this Agreement. 

 

i.) Survival. Any duty, liability or obligation arising hereunder, including 

without limitation, the obligation of indemnification, shall survive the 

termination of this Agreement and shall be legally enforceable until 

satisfied by performance or payment or until enforcement is legally 

precluded by lapse of time. 

 

j.) Successors and assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure 

to the benefit of the successors and assigns of the State and Bethel. 

 

k.) Recitals. The recitals stated above are agreed to be true and correct and are 

incorporated herein as material provisions. 

 

 

(SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE) 

  

83



7 | P a g e  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as 

of the date signed below. 

 

CITY OF BETHEL 

 

 

 ______________________________________  

Peter Williams 

Bethel, City Manager  

Date:   _________________________________  

 

 

 

STATE OF ALASKA 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

AND PUBLIC FACILITIES 

 

 

 ______________________________________  

Dave Kemp, P.E. 

Director, Central Region  

Date:   _________________________________  

 
 

84



 

85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



1  

City of Bethel Information Memorandum 
 

 

Title: DCCED Requirement for Submission of Monthly Financial Report to the City Council and 
Financial Report for Eight Months Ending February 28, 2018. 
 
Attachment(s): (A) DCCED Requirement for Submission of Monthly Financial Report to the City 
Council, (B) COB Monthly Financial Report for Eight Months Period Ending February 28, 2018. 
 

Department/Individual: Initials: Remarks: 

Administration PW  

Finance JC  

    

Amount of fiscal impact:  Account information: 

None No fiscal impact at this time.  
 Funds in City Budget.  

  Funds not in City Budget.   

 
Summary Statement 
 

The attached financial report for the eight months ending February 28, 2018 was 
prepared and distributed to Bethel City Council members for their review. This 
Information Memorandum documents the dissemination of this report to Bethel City 
Council members, as required by the Alaska Department of Commerce, Community and 
Economic Development, Division of Community and Regional Affairs.  
 
The process of preparing and submitting monthly financial reports to City Council helps 
the City earn points on the Water and Sewer Utility Best Practices Operation and 
Maintenance Reports. The City must have a score of 60 or greater out of 100 points in 
order to be approved for funding from the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and 
the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation (DEC). In other capital grants 
administered by DEC’s Village Safe Water Program, the City’s Best Practices score is an 
application scoring criterion. 

Information Memo No. 18-06 
Date introduced:  April 24, 2018 Introduced by: Peter Williams, City Manager 

Amended actions:    

Confirmed by:  

104



Attachment A 

DCCED Requirement for Submission of Monthly Financial Report to the City Council 

  

105



CITY OF BETHEL

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2018

WATER & SEWER SERVICES

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

WATER 

51-42-410 TRUCKED WATER             1,845,745.93 1,845,745.93 2,497,704.00 651,958.07 73.9

51-42-412 METERED PIPED WATER COMM. 288,958.85 288,958.85 464,397.00 175,438.15 62.2

51-42-414 UNMETERED PIPED WTR RESID 540,434.27 540,434.27 827,502.00 287,067.73 65.3

51-42-416 CONTRACT WATER 8,717.00 8,717.00 7,800.00 (                917.00) 111.8

51-42-436 PUMPHOUSE WATER 10,231.75 10,231.75 10,500.00 268.25 97.5

TOTAL WATER  2,694,087.80 2,694,087.80 3,807,903.00 1,113,815.20 70.8

SEWER

51-43-411 TRUCKED SEWER (EVAC/HB)   1,025,947.46 1,025,947.46 1,540,427.00 514,479.54 66.6

51-43-412 METERED PIPED SEWER COMM. 520,057.54 520,057.54 812,104.00 292,046.46 64.0

51-43-414 UNMETERED PIPED SEWER RES 159,997.96 159,997.96 248,251.00 88,253.04 64.5

51-43-416 CONTRACT SEWER     16,552.23 16,552.23 25,000.00 8,447.77 66.2

TOTAL SEWER 1,722,555.19 1,722,555.19 2,625,782.00 903,226.81 65.6

MISCELLANEOUS

51-45-434 UTILITY PENALTY/INTEREST  30,847.90 30,847.90 22,000.00 (             8,847.90) 140.2

51-45-435 RECONNECT FEES            1,680.00 1,680.00 7,500.00 5,820.00 22.4

51-45-450 SENIOR DISCOUNT           (           29,767.56) (           29,767.56) (           38,000.00) (             8,232.44) (  78.3)

51-45-467 NSF CHECKS AND FEES .00 .00 300.00 300.00 .0

51-45-468 UTILITY INSPECTION FEES   1,321.16 1,321.16 1,500.00 178.84 88.1

51-45-471 WATER SUBSCRIPTION FEES .00 .00 165,500.00 165,500.00 .0

51-45-472 SEWER SUBSCRIPTION FEES .00 .00 176,958.00 176,958.00 .0

51-45-487 INVESTMENT INCOME .04 .04 .00 (                      .04) .0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 4,081.54 4,081.54 335,758.00 331,676.46 1.2

MISCELLANEOUS

51-49-466 CASH OVER/SHORT           27.37 27.37 .00 (                  27.37) .0

51-49-487 INVESTMENT INCOME         .00 .00 5,254.00 5,254.00 .0

51-49-495 MISCELLANEOUS INCOME 1,428.56 1,428.56 .00 (             1,428.56) .0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 1,455.93 1,455.93 5,254.00 3,798.07 27.7

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 4,422,180.46 4,422,180.46 6,774,697.00 2,352,516.54 65.3

106



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2018

WATER & SEWER SERVICES

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

UTILITY BILLING

51-80-501 SALARIES                  43,678.54 43,678.54 82,158.00 38,479.46 53.2

51-80-502 OVERTIME             658.61 658.61 2,000.00 1,341.39 32.9

51-80-508 LEAVE CASHOUT .00 .00 4,108.00 4,108.00 .0

51-80-511 MEDICARE FICA             649.39 649.39 1,220.00 570.61 53.2

51-80-512 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE    23,204.39 23,204.39 45,360.00 22,155.61 51.2

51-80-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 1,585.00 1,585.00 .0

51-80-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION 384.00 384.00 318.00 (                  66.00) 120.8

51-80-518 PERS 9,527.51 9,527.51 18,515.00 8,987.49 51.5

51-80-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           751.15 751.15 7,980.00 7,228.85 9.4

51-80-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           .00 .00 3,500.00 3,500.00 .0

51-80-561 SUPPLIES 759.00 759.00 6,000.00 5,241.00 12.7

51-80-649 ONLINE BILL PAY 1,121.30 1,121.30 3,000.00 1,878.70 37.4

51-80-721 INSURANCE                 376.00 376.00 1,000.00 624.00 37.6

51-80-727 ADVERTISING               .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

51-80-733 POSTAGE                   .00 .00 6,000.00 6,000.00 .0

51-80-736 BANK CHARGES              15,642.92 15,642.92 36,500.00 20,857.08 42.9

51-80-799 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES    .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

51-80-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 8,593.30 8,593.30 16,566.00 7,972.70 51.9

51-80-998 ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD-GF 12,321.00 12,321.00 29,287.00 16,966.00 42.1

TOTAL UTILITY BILLING 117,667.11 117,667.11 266,597.00 148,929.89 44.1

107



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2018

WATER & SEWER SERVICES

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

HAULED WATER

51-81-501 SALARIES                  249,838.39 249,838.39 366,344.00 116,505.61 68.2

51-81-502 OVERTIME                  81,946.32 81,946.32 120,000.00 38,053.68 68.3

51-81-508 LEAVE CASHOUT .00 .00 20,495.00 20,495.00 .0

51-81-511 MEDICARE                  4,945.21 4,945.21 7,052.00 2,106.79 70.1

51-81-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   124,190.30 124,190.30 224,856.00 100,665.70 55.2

51-81-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              5,662.30 5,662.30 7,925.00 2,262.70 71.5

51-81-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION 13,624.00 13,624.00 14,359.00 735.00 94.9

51-81-518 PERS 70,208.74 70,208.74 106,996.00 36,787.26 65.6

51-81-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           15,913.02 15,913.02 39,558.00 23,644.98 40.2

51-81-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           1,803.51 1,803.51 4,000.00 2,196.49 45.1

51-81-561 SUPPLIES                  5,662.63 5,662.63 9,525.00 3,862.37 59.5

51-81-563 WEARING APPAREL           730.40 730.40 8,000.00 7,269.60 9.1

51-81-600 TIRES                    25,045.36 25,045.36 25,045.36 .00 100.0

51-81-601 VEHICLE MT. (PARTS & TOOLS) 20.00 20.00 5,000.00 4,980.00 .4

51-81-602 GASOLINE/DIESEL/OIL       50,554.73 50,554.73 110,000.00 59,445.27 46.0

51-81-621 ELECTRICITY               2,895.38 2,895.38 10,000.00 7,104.62 29.0

51-81-622 TELEPHONE 178.27 178.27 600.00 421.73 29.7

51-81-623 HEATING FUEL              5,014.63 5,014.63 30,000.00 24,985.37 16.7

51-81-626 WATER/SEWER/GARBAGE 4,198.01 4,198.01 8,200.00 4,001.99 51.2

51-81-650 LAB TESTS 600.00 600.00 2,000.00 1,400.00 30.0

51-81-661 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIR 151,801.01 151,801.01 303,823.64 152,022.63 50.0

51-81-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES  6,983.33 6,983.33 .00 (             6,983.33) .0

51-81-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           482.10 482.10 2,000.00 1,517.90 24.1

51-81-721 INSURANCE                 36,400.56 36,400.56 21,000.00 (           15,400.56) 173.3

51-81-722 INSURANCE-DED EXP & OTHER (           14,200.00) (           14,200.00) 10,000.00 24,200.00 (142.0)

51-81-738 BAD DEBT EXPENSE          .00 .00 9,000.00 9,000.00 .0

51-81-799 MISCELLANEOUS             545.55 545.55 1,000.00 454.45 54.6

51-81-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 7,835.06 7,835.06 15,359.00 7,523.94 51.0

51-81-998 ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD-GF 98,514.00 98,514.00 162,827.00 64,313.00 60.5

TOTAL HAULED WATER 951,392.81 951,392.81 1,644,965.00 693,572.19 57.8

108



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2018

WATER & SEWER SERVICES

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

PIPED WATER

51-82-501 SALARIES                  75,598.57 75,598.57 133,030.00 57,431.43 56.8

51-82-502 OVERTIME                  21,564.36 21,564.36 45,000.00 23,435.64 47.9

51-82-508 LEAVE CASHOUT 2,867.89 2,867.89 6,819.00 3,951.11 42.1

51-82-511 MEDICARE                  1,473.87 1,473.87 2,581.00 1,107.13 57.1

51-82-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   40,470.18 40,470.18 55,728.00 15,257.82 72.6

51-82-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 3,970.00 3,970.00 .0

51-82-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 5,256.00 5,256.00 .0

51-82-518 PERS 21,090.81 21,090.81 39,167.00 18,076.19 53.9

51-82-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           2,430.55 2,430.55 9,804.00 7,373.45 24.8

51-82-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

51-82-561 SUPPLIES                  3,428.40 3,428.40 4,525.00 1,096.60 75.8

51-82-563 WEARING APPAREL           664.45 664.45 2,000.00 1,335.55 33.2

51-82-592 PLUMBING SUPPLIES         1,709.44 1,709.44 5,000.00 3,290.56 34.2

51-82-601 VEHICLE MT. (PARTS & TOOLS) 232.78 232.78 .00 (                232.78) .0

51-82-602 GASOLINE/DIESEL/OIL       5,675.31 5,675.31 20,000.00 14,324.69 28.4

51-82-621 ELECTRICITY-UTIL MT SHOP  2,890.87 2,890.87 7,500.00 4,609.13 38.5

51-82-622 TELEPHONE                 870.73 870.73 2,750.00 1,879.27 31.7

51-82-623 HEATING FUEL              14,477.66 14,477.66 20,000.00 5,522.34 72.4

51-82-626 WATER/SEWER/GARB    248.76 248.76 600.00 351.24 41.5

51-82-627 STAFF CELLULAR PHONES 92.62 92.62 .00 (                  92.62) .0

51-82-649 ENGINEERING SERVICES .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0

51-82-661 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIR      1,774.07 1,774.07 3,037.00 1,262.93 58.4

51-82-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES  35.00 35.00 2,500.00 2,465.00 1.4

51-82-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           1,350.15 1,350.15 3,000.00 1,649.85 45.0

51-82-721 INSURANCE                 2,688.00 2,688.00 5,400.00 2,712.00 49.8

51-82-722 INSURANCE-DED EXP & OTHER .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

51-82-727 ADVERTISING               .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

51-82-738 BAD DEBT EXPENSE          .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

51-82-998 ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD-GF 28,598.00 28,598.00 54,065.00 25,467.00 52.9

TOTAL PIPED WATER 230,232.47 230,232.47 448,232.00 217,999.53 51.4

109



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2018

WATER & SEWER SERVICES

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

BETHEL HTS WTR TREATMENT  

51-83-501 SALARIES                  70,894.90 70,894.90 94,389.00 23,494.10 75.1

51-83-502 OVERTIME                  23,081.67 23,081.67 31,000.00 7,918.33 74.5

51-83-508 LEAVE CASHOUT .00 .00 11,239.00 11,239.00 .0

51-83-511 MEDICARE                  334.48 334.48 1,818.00 1,483.52 18.4

51-83-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   14,982.29 14,982.29 44,064.00 29,081.71 34.0

51-83-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 2,014.00 2,014.00 .0

51-83-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 3,668.00 3,668.00 .0

51-83-518 PERS 20,015.42 20,015.42 27,585.00 7,569.58 72.6

51-83-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           5,027.75 5,027.75 7,752.00 2,724.25 64.9

51-83-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

51-83-561 SUPPLIES                  48,587.81 48,587.81 50,000.00 1,412.19 97.2

51-83-563 WEARING APPAREL           .00 .00 800.00 800.00 .0

51-83-592 PLUMBING SUPPLIES         .00 .00 4,000.00 4,000.00 .0

51-83-602 GASOLINE/DIESEL/OIL       111.07 111.07 .00 (                111.07) .0

51-83-621 ELECTRICITY (PUMPHOUSE)   53,091.33 53,091.33 70,000.00 16,908.67 75.8

51-83-622 TELEPHONE                 378.13 378.13 1,600.00 1,221.87 23.6

51-83-623 HEATING FUEL (PUMPHOUSE)  75,171.62 75,171.62 130,000.00 54,828.38 57.8

51-83-649 ENGINEERING SERVICES      .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

51-83-650 LAB TESTS                 5,570.43 5,570.43 5,000.00 (                570.43) 111.4

51-83-661 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIR      1,129.06 1,129.06 3,037.00 1,907.94 37.2

51-83-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES  8,651.52 8,651.52 10,000.00 1,348.48 86.5

51-83-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           4,605.87 4,605.87 5,000.00 394.13 92.1

51-83-721 INSURANCE                 8,800.00 8,800.00 10,380.00 1,580.00 84.8

51-83-727 ADVERTISING               17.75 17.75 500.00 482.25 3.6

51-83-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 8,087.80 8,087.80 15,822.00 7,734.20 51.1

51-83-998 ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD-GF 22,071.00 22,071.00 40,103.00 18,032.00 55.0

TOTAL BETHEL HTS WTR TREATMENT  370,609.90 370,609.90 573,271.00 202,661.10 64.7

110



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2018

WATER & SEWER SERVICES

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

CITY SUB WTR TREATMENT    

51-84-501 SALARIES                  70,226.23 70,226.23 96,735.00 26,508.77 72.6

51-84-502 OVERTIME                  18,799.80 18,799.80 29,000.00 10,200.20 64.8

51-84-508 LEAVE CASHOUT .00 .00 5,257.00 5,257.00 .0

51-84-511 MEDICARE                  1,314.62 1,314.62 18,232.00 16,917.38 7.2

51-84-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   36,469.43 36,469.43 44,064.00 7,594.57 82.8

51-84-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 2,014.00 2,014.00 .0

51-84-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 3,712.00 3,712.00 .0

51-84-518 PERS 18,605.93 18,605.93 27,662.00 9,056.07 67.3

51-84-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           1,643.65 1,643.65 7,752.00 6,108.35 21.2

51-84-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           1,000.00 1,000.00 3,000.00 2,000.00 33.3

51-84-561 SUPPLIES                  46,881.35 46,881.35 45,000.00 (             1,881.35) 104.2

51-84-563 WEARING APPAREL           .00 .00 800.00 800.00 .0

51-84-592 PLUMBING SUPPLIES         .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

51-84-602 GASOLINE/DIESEL/OIL       579.46 579.46 600.00 20.54 96.6

51-84-621 ELECTRICITY (CS WTF)      28,483.93 28,483.93 50,000.00 21,516.07 57.0

51-84-622 TELEPHONE                 23.03 23.03 1,800.00 1,776.97 1.3

51-84-623 HEATING FUEL(CS WTF)      57,431.08 57,431.08 80,000.00 22,568.92 71.8

51-84-649 ENGINEERING SERVICES      .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

51-84-650 LAB TESTS                 5,610.44 5,610.44 7,500.00 1,889.56 74.8

51-84-661 VEHICLE MAINT (ISF)  1,135.83 1,135.83 3,037.00 1,901.17 37.4

51-84-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES  760.84 760.84 15,000.00 14,239.16 5.1

51-84-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           763.86 763.86 5,000.00 4,236.14 15.3

51-84-721 INSURANCE                 5,488.00 5,488.00 5,700.00 212.00 96.3

51-84-727 ADVERTISING               .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

51-84-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 8,846.03 8,846.03 17,181.00 8,334.97 51.5

51-84-998 ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD-GF 24,516.00 24,516.00 42,058.00 17,542.00 58.3

TOTAL CITY SUB WTR TREATMENT    328,579.51 328,579.51 515,104.00 186,524.49 63.8

111



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2018

WATER & SEWER SERVICES

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

HAULED SEWER

51-85-501 SALARIES                  262,989.65 262,989.65 403,733.00 140,743.35 65.1

51-85-502 OVERTIME                  51,448.03 51,448.03 85,000.00 33,551.97 60.5

51-85-508 LEAVE CASHOUT 4,779.81 4,779.81 24,164.00 19,384.19 19.8

51-85-511 MEDICARE                  4,648.04 4,648.04 7,957.00 3,308.96 58.4

51-85-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   142,358.67 142,358.67 250,776.00 108,417.33 56.8

51-85-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              11,044.47 11,044.47 10,150.00 (                894.47) 108.8

51-85-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION 13,512.00 13,512.00 16,201.00 2,689.00 83.4

51-85-518 PERS 67,754.35 67,754.35 120,721.00 52,966.65 56.1

51-85-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           7,287.70 7,287.70 44,118.00 36,830.30 16.5

51-85-561 SUPPLIES                  5,274.76 5,274.76 5,525.00 250.24 95.5

51-85-563 WEARING APPAREL           2,893.75 2,893.75 10,000.00 7,106.25 28.9

51-85-600 TIRES & WHEELS            15,180.50 15,180.50 12,000.00 (             3,180.50) 126.5

51-85-601 VEHICLE MT. (PARTS & TOOLS) 93.50 93.50 4,200.00 4,106.50 2.2

51-85-602 GASOLINE/DIESEL/OIL       42,164.95 42,164.95 110,000.00 67,835.05 38.3

51-85-621 ELECTRICITY              2,895.38 2,895.38 8,000.00 5,104.62 36.2

51-85-622 TELEPHONE                 .00 .00 350.00 350.00 .0

51-85-623 HEATING FUEL              5,014.63 5,014.63 30,000.00 24,985.37 16.7

51-85-626 WATER/SEWER/GARBAGE 4,198.01 4,198.01 6,500.00 2,301.99 64.6

51-85-661 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIR      186,050.90 186,050.90 313,869.00 127,818.10 59.3

51-85-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES  280.00 280.00 .00 (                280.00) .0

51-85-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           482.10 482.10 2,000.00 1,517.90 24.1

51-85-721 INSURANCE                 29,584.87 29,584.87 17,000.00 (           12,584.87) 174.0

51-85-722 INSURANCE-DED EXP & OTHER 339.43 339.43 10,000.00 9,660.57 3.4

51-85-738 BAD DEBT EXPENSE          .00 .00 12,000.00 12,000.00 .0

51-85-799 MISCELLANEOUS             35.00 35.00 1,000.00 965.00 3.5

51-85-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 252.74 252.74 615.00 362.26 41.1

51-85-998 ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD-GF 89,152.00 89,152.00 183,502.00 94,350.00 48.6

TOTAL HAULED SEWER 949,715.24 949,715.24 1,689,381.00 739,665.76 56.2

112



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2018

WATER & SEWER SERVICES

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

PIPED SEWER

51-86-501 SALARIES                  72,067.67 72,067.67 143,080.00 71,012.33 50.4

51-86-502 OVERTIME                  21,583.71 21,583.71 35,000.00 13,416.29 61.7

51-86-508 LEAVE CASHOUT 2,867.88 2,867.88 6,819.00 3,951.12 42.1

51-86-511 MEDICARE                  1,422.95 1,422.95 2,582.00 1,159.05 55.1

51-86-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   39,236.06 39,236.06 57,024.00 17,787.94 68.8

51-86-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 3,971.00 3,971.00 .0

51-86-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 5,258.00 5,258.00 .0

51-86-518 PERS 20,318.27 20,318.27 39,178.00 18,859.73 51.9

51-86-519 UTILITY BENEFITS          4,911.70 4,911.70 9,478.00 4,566.30 51.8

51-86-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

51-86-561 SUPPLIES                  2,714.61 2,714.61 5,525.00 2,810.39 49.1

51-86-563 WEARING APPAREL           2,136.90 2,136.90 2,500.00 363.10 85.5

51-86-592 PLUMBING SUPPLIES         .00 .00 4,000.00 4,000.00 .0

51-86-602 GASOLINE/DIESEL/OIL       4,900.47 4,900.47 25,000.00 20,099.53 19.6

51-86-621 ELECTRICITY-LIFTST & BLDG 57,684.28 57,684.28 75,000.00 17,315.72 76.9

51-86-622 TELEPHONE                 .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

51-86-623 HEATING FUEL              14,388.44 14,388.44 35,000.00 20,611.56 41.1

51-86-626 WATER/SEWER/GARB 248.77 248.77 600.00 351.23 41.5

51-86-661 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIR      1,494.38 1,494.38 3,037.00 1,542.62 49.2

51-86-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES  2,135.98 2,135.98 20,000.00 17,864.02 10.7

51-86-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           44,515.98 44,515.98 125,000.00 80,484.02 35.6

51-86-721 INSURANCE                 2,656.00 2,656.00 4,500.00 1,844.00 59.0

51-86-722 INSURANCE-DED EXP & OTHER .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

51-86-736 LEASED PROPERTY-LIFT STATIONS 12,204.15 12,204.15 10,000.00 (             2,204.15) 122.0

51-86-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 252.74 252.74 615.00 362.26 41.1

51-86-998 ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD-GF 28,368.00 28,368.00 54,251.00 25,883.00 52.3

TOTAL PIPED SEWER 336,108.94 336,108.94 676,418.00 340,309.06 49.7

113



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2018

WATER & SEWER SERVICES

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

SEWER LAGOON

51-87-501 SALARIES                  19,241.35 19,241.35 54,327.00 35,085.65 35.4

51-87-502 OVERTIME                  4,822.46 4,822.46 9,000.00 4,177.54 53.6

51-87-508 LEAVE CASHOUT 637.31 637.31 1,616.00 978.69 39.4

51-87-511 MEDICARE                  363.74 363.74 918.00 554.26 39.6

51-87-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   10,008.85 10,008.85 18,144.00 8,135.15 55.2

51-87-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 1,412.00 1,412.00 .0

51-87-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 1,870.00 1,870.00 .0

51-87-518 PERS 5,230.60 5,230.60 13,932.00 8,701.40 37.5

51-87-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           481.70 481.70 3,016.00 2,534.30 16.0

51-87-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .00 100.0

51-87-561 SUPPLIES                  1,045.80 1,045.80 1,000.00 (                  45.80) 104.6

51-87-563 WEARING APPAREL           .00 .00 1,200.00 1,200.00 .0

51-87-592 PLUMBING SUPPLIES         .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

51-87-602 GASOLINE                  6,334.21 6,334.21 15,000.00 8,665.79 42.2

51-87-650 LAB TESTS (SAMPLES)       .00 .00 12,000.00 12,000.00 .0

51-87-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES  .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

51-87-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

51-87-721 INSURANCE                 176.00 176.00 800.00 624.00 22.0

51-87-727 ADVERTISING               .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

51-87-998 ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD-GF 7,067.00 7,067.00 18,700.00 11,633.00 37.8

TOTAL SEWER LAGOON 56,909.02 56,909.02 160,435.00 103,525.98 35.5

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 3,341,215.00 3,341,215.00 5,974,403.00 2,633,188.00 55.9

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 1,080,965.46 1,080,965.46 800,294.00 (         280,671.46) 135.1

114



Attachment B 

COB Monthly Financial Report for Eight Months Period Ending February 28, 2018 

115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



 

Mayor’s Report  
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

149



 

City Manager’s Report 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



 

 
 

Management Team Reports 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

163



 

City Clerk’s Report  
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

164



1 of 1 cityclerk@cityofbethel.net  

907-543-1384 

 

City of Bethel, Alaska 
City Clerk’s Office 
 

Council Meetings and Events 
April 24, 2018 Regular Meeting  

 
Burial Permits April 1 to Current 
2 Burial Permits have been issued 
 
Passport Applications April 1 to Current 
8 Passport Applications have been processed 

 
Committee Training  
Planning Commission completed.  
 
Petitions 
The City Clerk’s Office certified another petition; the booklets were issued on April 17th.  
The two Petitions circulating are: 
Issued February 13:  
 

Question 1  

Shall the City of Bethel adopt a local option (4.11.491 (a) (3) (A) and (C)), to prohibit the sale of alcoholic beverages 

except through a City of Bethel run:  

3. A. Restaurant or eating place license, which authorizes the City of Bethel to operate a restaurant or eating place 

to sell beer and wine for consumption only on the licensed premises; and  

3. C. Package store license, commonly known as a liquor store, which authorizes the City of Bethel to sell alcoholic 

beverages to a person present on the licensed premises or to a person known to the licensee who makes a written 

solicitation to that licensee for shipment. 

     Yes    No 

IMPARTIAL SUMMARY OF THE CHANGE IN LOCAL OPTION BEING PROPOSED: 

A yes vote on this ballot question means you want the community of Bethel to fall under Local Option, preventing 

the sales of alcoholic beverages in the community of Bethel anywhere other than a package store and restaurant 

owned and operated by the City of Bethel.  

A no vote on this ballot questions means you want to the community of Bethel to remain out of local option, 

allowing for the sales of alcoholic beverages through businesses other than the City of Bethel.  

Question 2 

If local option (4.11.491 (a) (3) (A) and (C)) is adopted, shall the City of Bethel opt to not apply a class C felony to 

violations of Alaska Statutes 04.16.051, Furnishing or Delivery of Alcoholic Beverages to Persons Under the Age of 

21 (AS 04.11.491(g)(3))? 

     Yes    No 

 

165

mailto:cityclerk@cityofbethel.net


2 of 1 cityclerk@cityofbethel.net  

907-543-1384 

 

 

 

 

IMPARTIAL SUMMARY OF THE CHANGE IN LOCAL OPTION BEING PROPOSED:  

A yes vote on this question means if the community of Bethel adopts Local Option as provided in Question 1, you 

want the penalties for furnishing or delivery of alcoholic beverages to a person under the age of 21 to be a 

misdemeanor.  

A no vote on this question means if the community of Bethel adopts Local Option as provided in Question 1, you 

want the penalties for furnishing or delivery of alcoholic beverages to a person under the age of 21 to be a felony.  

 

Issued April 17:  
 

Question 1 

Shall the City of Bethel adopt a local option (4.11.491 (a) (1)), to prohibit the sale of alcoholic beverages.  

     Yes    No 

 

IMPARTIAL SUMMARY OF THE CHANGE IN LOCAL OPTION BEING PROPOSED: 

A yes vote on this ballot question means you want the community of Bethel to fall under Local Option, preventing 

the sales of alcoholic beverages in the community of Bethel. 

A no vote on this ballot questions means you want to the community of Bethel to remain out of local option, 

allowing for the sales of alcoholic beverages in the community of Bethel.  

 
Per AS 04.11.507 Procedure for local option elections, subsection g, the Office after a petition has been 
certified as sufficient to meet the requirements of (b) or (c) of this section, another petition may not be filed 
or certified until after the question presented in the first petition has been voted on. Additionally, only one 
local option question may be presented in an election.  
 
Alcohol Task Force 
Prepared and sent out by mail and email invitations and notices of the Alcohol Task Force Meeting.  
The meeting was held on April 17th with many of the invited participants present. The next meeting will be 
held May 15, 2018. The Office is working on the summary/notes from the meeting.  
 
Document Preparation  
AM for Special Budget Meetings 
Review of Public Safety and Transportation Commission  
Corrections to Council’s amendments from the last regular meeting.  
Researching limitations on alcohol sales in other states to help confirm the City isn’t able to limit the type of 
alcohol sold by retailers.   
 
 

166

mailto:cityclerk@cityofbethel.net


 

 
 

Executive Session   
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

167



 

Additional Information  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

168


	Approval of the Meeting Minutes
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Special Order of Business
	Unfinished Business
	New Business
	Mayor’s Report
	City Manager’s Report
	Management Team Reports
	City Clerk’s Report
	Executive Session
	Reports of Standing Commitees Planning april meeting packet 2018.pdf
	agenda revised
	april meeting packet 2018

	New Business Liquor LIcense Transfer Supporting Documents 2.pdf
	5447 Trans LGB Notice (1)
	5447 AB-01 (1)
	5447 AB-02




